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Financial & Business Highlights

£20.4m
Revenue (2014: £21.7m)

Revenue £20.4m (2014: £21.7m).
	Robust performance in Aerospace & Defence sector with some deferred projects in the Energy & Process

£2.3m

Industries sector.

Operating losses reduced by 41% (2014: £3.9m)

Operating losses reduced by 41% to £2.3m (2014: £3.9m).
Management focus on margin improvement.
Exit from loss-making R&D projects.

£0

Adjusted EBITDA losses reduced to £nil (2014: £2.1m).

Adjusted EBITDA losses (2014: £2.1m)
1

Group cash closed at £7.0m (2014: £9.6m) leaves us ahead of expectations.
Tighter financial controls reduced cash burn rate.
Reduced burden of self-funded R&D.

£7.0m

Group order book £14.5m (2014: £17.3m).

Group cash (2014: £9.6m)

	
Deferred projects with downstream energy customers hit order book, yet pipeline remains strong for 2016.

£14.5m
Group order book (2014: £17.3m)

Timing of large defence contracts weighted into 2016.
Strong visibility of 2016 revenues.

Strategy & organisation

Commercial achievements

• M
 anagement changes focused on route to

• G
 ood visibility of 2016 revenues continues

• R
 estructured into service-specific

• B
 uilt upon major account partnerships to

• M
 igration from self-funded R&D to

• Signed

first commercial agreement to supply

market and through-life services

business units

commercial service provision

the trajectory of the business
drive performance
turbo-expanders

Engineering achievements
• Launched development programme
in energy storage

Notes
1. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortisation
and impairment of acquired intangible assets and any other acquisition-related charges, share based payment charges and exceptional
items. Exceptional items are those items believed to be exceptional in nature by virtue of their size and or incidence. See note 3 to the
Financial Statements.

• C
 ompleted testing of renewable
energy expanders

• D
 elivered multiple atmosphere management
systems to export customers

A transformational year
of strategic changes and
operational improvements.
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Company overview
Our approach is based upon industry standard
methods that manage the design, build and
use of complex equipment. This means that
we apply specialist skills and knowledge to the
original idea, develop it through design, build,
use and eventual replacement.

Through-life technology and services
TP Group (TPG) is a combination of advanced
engineering, service and technology capabilities that
provide support to customers and partners at every
stage of their equipment lifecycle.
We operate as a Tier-2 supplier in the industries we
serve. This offers a breadth and depth of capability
that small companies cannot match, whilst being more
flexible and responsive than major contractors.
Our approach is based upon industry standard
methods that manage the design, build and use
of complex equipment. This means that we apply

specialist skills and knowledge to the original idea,
develop it through design, build, installation and
eventual replacement. We can support single phases of
this activity, or outsource the complete cycle. Through
this approach we enjoy long-term relationships with
partners and develop close understanding of their
technologies and objectives.
The Group works in partnership with system
integrators, prime contractors and end-users
on sophisticated systems at the heart of critical
operational processes.

The Group is managed
through four business units:

Supported systems include:

• T PG Design and Technology – front-end services in

• T hermal management systems

analysis, modelling and design

• T PG Maritime – delivery of high technology atmosphere
management systems

• H
 igh speed turbomachinery
• A
 tmosphere management and cleansing
• C
 lean air filtration and distribution

• T PG Engineering – delivery of advanced thermal

• Energy recovery and storage

• T PG Managed Solutions – long-term support of

Our clients:

systems and fabricated structures
equipment and operations

Services include:
• A
 nalysis
• D
 esign

TPG serves system operators and major contractors
across high value sectors. Our clients include:

• A
 rmed forces – Royal Navy, Australian and other navies
• P
 rime contractors – BAeSystems, Babcock, DCNS, TKMS
and other shipbuilders

• P
 roject management

• U
 pstream energy – BP, ExxonMobil

• P
 rime contract management

• D
 ownstream petrochemical – Ineos, Essar,

• E quipment build

• E quipment manufacturers – Spirax Sarco

• E quipment maintenance

• E ngineering Procurement & Construction

• S upply chain management

(EPCs) – Jacobs, VME

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015
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TPG Design and Technology

TPG Maritime

TPG partners with clients early in the project lifecycle
on technical solution options, and supports them with
skilled engineers that have relevant experience and
track records in the application area to deliver reliable,
high performance systems.

TPG has decades of track record as a trusted partner
in the Defence sector, delivering strategically important
air purification, filtration and management systems to
submarine programmes.

Our established services
in this phase include:
• T echnical feasibility studies for solutions in renewable
energy, air purification and other innovative fields

UK and International defence agencies and prime
contractors rely on TPG for specification, development,
delivery and through-life support of life-critical
atmosphere management systems, to ensure that
crews can operate safely and effectively for extended
periods underwater.

• A
 nalysis and modelling of complex systems
• F ront end engineering and design (FEED) studies that

We design, build
and support systems for:

• S pecialist design services in thermal engineering and

• O
 xygen generation
• G
 as management
• C
 arbon dioxide removal
• C
 arbon monoxide and hydrogen removal
• C
 lean air distribution

take concepts to an engineering reality
fatigue, rotor and aerodynamics

• S pecialist development services in power, control and
drive systems

• M
 odelling of energy systems for performance
and efficiency

• System design and development to carry concepts
through to prototype or build

TPG Engineering

TPG Managed Solutions

The systems and equipment we build for our clients
are innovative and bespoke, and support the
successful execution of their programmes.

The TPG philosophy is to support customers
throughout the life of their equipment, from the
earliest concept to eventual disposal.

We are leaders in specialist
engineering projects for critical
applications:

This means extending the scope of services beyond
equipment supply, adding management support of
the design and development process, the build and
deployment phases, and ongoing services for an
extended operational life.

• H
 igh-integrity pressure vessels for demanding
processes

• E xpander/generators for energy capture and
renewable energy generation

• L arge scale heat exchangers for petrochemical
refining and processing

• Compact compressors for specialist upstream gas
production applications

• Fabricated structures and assemblies in a
range of sectors

Services include:
• Prime contracting - simplifying complex programmes
or supply chains and taking overall responsibility for
efficient delivery

• Specialist resource solutions - provision of subject

matter experts in relevant fields to support
customers in the delivery of their major programmes

9
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and through-life support
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Highest standards for
critical systems

Energy on
demand

Managed
supply chain

Silicon is a basic ingredient in so many products that
contribute to our daily lives. Silicone fluids, rubber
and specialty polymers are used in a wide range of
applications, from cosmetics to car airbag coatings and
construction sealants.

Reforming is a chemical process where an alcohol
is split over a hot catalyst to form hydrogen, CO 2
and water vapour.

Naval vessels rely upon a controlled atmosphere to
keep the working and living environment safe and
comfortable on board. In the face of threats from
chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear
(CBRN) agents, it is essential that the vessels and
crew are protected.

The manufacturing processes are complex and at times
hazardous, or at least the materials are. Some fluids
in the process are classified as lethal service, and so
manufacturing equipment must be safe and reliable
throughout its operating life.
TPG’s engineers have worked for many years with one
of the UK’s premier manufacturers of silicon products.
We supply large heat exchangers, often weighing more
than 30 tonnes each, and look after them through their
difficult service lives.

This constant focus on quality and
reliability has served this customer
well for many years and helps their
products to remain part of our
everyday lives.
Heat exchangers for this purpose are large, sealed
metal containers with dozens of tubes inside, all
welded or bolted together. In this case, the quality
of welds is critical. All work done at the TPG site in
Dukinfield is subject to the most stringent
of testing procedures and quality assurance with
full documentation.
This is regarded as normal at a site which qualifies
for the highest industry standards for design,
manufacturing and process control.
This constant focus on quality and reliability has
served this customer well for many years and helps
their products to remain part of our everyday lives.

The produced hydrogen is burned in a fuel cell to
deliver electrical power. Alcohol is used as it is a
more convenient source of hydrogen than
the gas itself.
It is a liquid that can be carried and poured, rather
than an invisible and explosive gas that would
need to be compressed at up to 700 bar, just to
make it portable. The alcohol is used as the source
to produce useful hydrogen as required.
The process combines many of TPG’s capabilities
in a compact system. It uses a boiler to feed steam
into the hot catalyst chamber, and the alcohol is
pumped into the chamber through a vaporiser.
The system is an evolution of TPG’s work in
submarine atmosphere management, and many
of the subsystems are proven to the most
stringent standards.
The advantage of this approach is that it is silent,
efficient and doesn’t involve high pressure gases.
The current systems are rather complex and
expensive, and the focus of development work
with a range of partners is to simplify and value
engineer the method towards commercially
attractive units.

In addition to TP Group’s atmosphere management
systems on board submarines, the company also
supports the wider heating, ventilation and airconditioning systems through a managed supply chain
service that covers aspects of filtration and associated
components.

The cold economy a new approach
to energy storage
Cryogenic Energy Storage (CES) is a promising new
technology that aims to solve the problem of how
to store excess renewable energy.
Renewables are typically inconsistent in their
production rates and not well matched to
consumption. Wind and solar generation are very
effective when conditions are favourable, but
rely on the grid to balance itself to match supply
and demand.

The Ministry of Defence’s Filter HESS (Holistic
Equipment Support Service) contract has been
managed by TP Group for the last 11 years. It covers
CBRN Filtration across the Royal Navy, working as a
single managed solution provider with a number of
key suppliers and the MoD’s Science and Technology
Laboratories (DSTL). Under this contract TPG ensures
that ships and submarines go to sea capable of blocking
chemical or biological contaminants from entering
the vessel.

In the face of threats from chemical,
biological, radiological and nuclear
(CBRN) agents, it is essential that the
vessels and crew are protected.
The contract is managed against a collection of agreed
performance indicators that have been achieved
every month, as well as returning almost £700k to
the MoD through an arrangement that shares
performance improvements.

The goal of CES is to use cheap, off-peak or surplus
electricity to drive systems that convert air into a
liquid. This can then be stored over a long period
of time in a suitable vessel.
Turning the liquid back to gas, by removing it from
the store and applying heat to it, produces a huge
increase in volume and pressure. This is enough
to power a turbine that generates electricity which
can be supplied back to the grid.
TPG are experts in thermal management and
compact turbomachines that lie at the heart of this
approach. Our engineers are part of a wider team,
funded by the European Union under their Horizon
2020 programme, working on turning this exciting
concept into a reality that would mean economic
and environmentally sound energy that is more
reliably available at the place and time of need.

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015

12

13

Chairman’s Statement
Richard King
Whilst facing widely reported economic and industry
challenges over the last 12 months, the
Group has maintained a strong trading performance,
with continuing reduction in Adjusted EBITDA losses
to perform ahead of expectations.

During 2015, the Group achieved its stated goal of reaching break even at an Adjusted EBITDA level. This was
achieved ahead of schedule as a result of strategic changes and operational improvements. This milestone is a
notable step on our path to becoming a highly competitive Tier-2 engineering and services Group. This strategy
delivers excellent capability that has greater scale than smaller specialists yet is more flexible and responsive than
major contractors.
We also took the opportunity to manage some of the structural aspects of the business to optimise the Group for
growth. This included changes to our routes to market, our corporate branding, including a change of name, our
facilities and some changes to the Board of Directors.

Moving into positive territory

Outlook

Whilst facing widely reported economic and industry
challenges over the last 12 months, the Group has
maintained a strong trading performance, with
continuing reduction in Adjusted EBITDA losses to
perform ahead of expectations and achieve our goal of
breakeven sooner than planned.

Following the notable achievements of 2015, the Board
sees encouraging prospects for 2016.

Group revenues for the year ended 31 December 2015
were £20.4m (2014: £21.7m). Operating losses reduced
by 41% to £2.3m (2014: £3.9m) and the adjusted EBITDA
was £nil (2013: £2.1m loss).

Board changes
In April, Simon Kings and Martin Blomley joined the
Board as Executive Directors of the Company.
Simon was previously Managing Director of Atmosphere
Control International, and Martin was Group Corporate
Development Director. These appointments were made
to help drive both growth and operational performance
and strengthen, at an executive level, the Company’s
focus on our strategic market sectors.
Both Martin and Simon have brought extensive
operational and commercial experience in their markets
and have greatly enhanced the Board and contributed to
our strategic progress as a result.
In September, Julia Henderson stepped down from the
Board as a non-Executive Director.

The business is now organised to provide a full spectrum
of through-life services to our customers.
We look forward into 2016 with confidence, albeit
recognising that the business continues to face a
challenging Energy and Process Industries sector. The
through-life services proposition is gaining traction in
our key markets. The opening order book contains both
near-term and multi-year business which provides good
visibility of revenues for 2016 and beyond.
To deliver our intended growth, the Board will pursue
initiatives focused on organic development, developing
transformational technologies and carefully selected
acquisitions that are compatible with our technical
and market positions and can bring near-term value to
the Group.
The Board believes that TPG is well placed to return
positive results for our investors and other stakeholders

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review
Phil Cartmell
TP Group has been transformed through 2015 and continues to evolve as a valued Tier-2 provider
of complex systems and through-life support in critical application areas. We ended the year in a
very strong position, both financially and operationally.
During the year we made strategic changes to our R&D approach to reduce costs and turn that
activity into a revenue generating service. We also made changes to our management structure and
approach in our sales channels and service delivery, with positive effects in both areas.

Our role in the
markets we serve
TP Group is a specialist technology and support services
company that provides high-integrity solutions to end
users and prime contractors.
Our customers have access to more responsive and
flexible services than large suppliers can typically
provide, whilst being more capable and cost effective
than dealing with a collection of fragmented small
companies – this defines our Tier 2 position.
The result is:

• T rusted system performance and reliability
• F ocus on contributing to their performance
• C
 onsolidation of fragmented supply chains
• A
 n integrated through-life support service

During the year we made strategic
changes to our R&D approach
to reduce costs and turn that
activity into a revenue generating
service. We also made changes to
our management structure and
approach in our sales channels
and service delivery, with positive
effects in both areas.

Sector review and drivers
Aerospace & Defence

Energy & Process Industries

In this sector, our customers are typically armed forces,
security services and large prime contractors. We
provide them with atmosphere control systems, spares,
through-life equipment support, specialist functional
support and supply-chain management services.

In this sector we serve a diverse range of customers
including upstream energy producers, downstream
petrochemical processors and refiners, power
generators, equipment manufacturers and engineering,
procurement and construction companies (EPCs).

In the 2015 Strategic Defence Spending Review, the
government committed to reduce the number of civilians
employed by the MoD by almost 30%, to 41,000, by
the end of this Parliament. This, plus the growing role
of industrial partners to provide the “Whole Force”
approach has stimulated us to launch a Managed
Solutions business unit. Initially focused in the defence
market through our existing equipment support
contracts, the team will develop further prime contract
business as well as providing specialist resources and
capability into key programmes.

To this community we develop, build and support
renewable energy technologies, thermal systems,
pressure systems, turbomachinery, specialised
fabrication and equipment support.

We are witnessing growing world-wide demand for more
technically sophisticated submarines, and global defence
budgets have grown year on year.

• In the UK, our Maritime business unit has been active

supporting the ongoing Astute class build programme,
supporting further operations of the Vanguard class
whilst making preparations for the next generation
Successor class.

• O
 ur export business has also been active with further
contracts in France and SE Asia, and continued
positioning for new programmes in Brazil, Australia
and elsewhere.

Growth in submarine systems exports drove a 22%
rise in business conducted in Asia compared with 2014.
European business also increased by 75%, primarily due
to additional work on the French submarine programme.

Energy demand remains high, and despite pressures
on raw material prices, global refinery capacity is
projected to grow, both by extending asset life or adding
new capacity. Capital project deferrals have slowed
the market in 2015, reducing Group revenues in this
area. It is expected that additional refurbishment and
maintenance of existing assets will increase as a result.
This is good news for both our Engineering business unit
for primary projects and our Managed Solutions team.
Equipment support, as already delivered to the defence
sector, will emerge as managed or outsourced services
in the energy sector.
Meanwhile in the renewables sector, the EU is investing
€6 billion in energy projects between 2014 and 2020.
The focus is on clean energy technologies, renewable
generation and energy storage. TPG has been active in
all these fields throughout the year, and demonstrated
the transformation of our R&D activities by winning a
place on the EU funded Cryohub project to develop
energy storage solutions using liquid air.
The Design & Technology team has also been developing
renewable energy and energy storage opportunities in
Italy, Australia and the Middle East.
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Our focus
Shaping the Business to Succeed

Branding and Positioning

End-to-End Support of Customers’ Projects

Management of Costs and Margins

In 2014 we set out a plan to co-ordinate our approach
across different products and services which involved
a technical services delivery to the early phases of
a project, specialist engineering to build and deliver
systems, plus a managed solutions approach to
resourcing and ongoing support.

In June 2015, the Company was renamed as TP Group
plc. This was another step in the Group’s substantial
progress migrating from a research and development
driven company to a more balanced and diverse
business providing specialist engineering, technical
services and managed services throughout the
life of programmes carried out by our global high
technology customers.

The Group has the skills and capability to work in
partnership with our customers throughout the life of
their equipment or systems. We are flexible to support
one, many or all of the phases from concept through
analysis, design, manufacture, in-service support and
eventually the disposal of equipment at end of life. This
model allows us to overlap another lifecycle as it is most
likely that replacement equipment will be designed,
developed and installed to keep services running for
the customer.

The value provided to our customers is improved
year on year by working hard to improve our supply
chain performance and by management focus on the
operational performance of each business unit.

This vision is being realised and we now operate against
a theme of through-life equipment support through four
business units:

• T PG Design and Technology – front-end services in
analysis, modelling and design

The new name acknowledges our technology heritage
and captures the partnership approach we enjoy with
our long term customers, suppliers, collaborators,
investors and staff.

• T PG Maritime – delivery of high technology
atmosphere management systems

• T PG Engineering – delivery of advanced thermal
systems and fabricated structures

• T PG Managed Solutions – long-term support of
equipment and operations

Transforming our routes to market means that all
of these services are available to all of our markets.
Customers can continue to work with them for a single
system or service (as was generally the case in the
past) or as we are increasingly seeing, in combination to
provide a true end-to-end service.
These initiatives were centred around our drive to build
the business as a specialist engineering company with
best in class capability that is technically excellent and
meets the needs of our clients.

In 2014 we set out a plan to
co-ordinate our approach across
different products and services
which involved a technical services
delivery to the early phases of a
project, specialist engineering to
build and deliver systems, plus a
managed solutions approach to
resourcing and ongoing support.

Solution Sales Across the Portfolio
We have organised the Group to be more aware of the
breadth of activities within a customer account. In the
past, we had very effective but limited relationships that
provided a single response to a specific need. We can
now add value throughout the lifecycle by introducing
service provision as well as the main equipment supply.
We can also expand the scope of the equipment
supplied by adding complementary engineering
solutions from the Group portfolio.

We have organised the Group
to be more aware of the breadth
of activities within a customer
account. In the past, we had very
effective but limited relationships
that provided a single response to
a specific need.

The supply chain has been subject to close attention
through the year as we applied a central view to
procurement of similar items across the different
operating units. This has led to several new
arrangements that will benefit the Group in future years.
We have also benefited from the effects of vertical
integration arising from the acquisition of Shaw Sheet
Metal in February 2015. Metal fabrications that were
previously bought in through the supply chain can
now be produced in-house with a knock-on effect
on system costs.
People
The Group employs more than 170 people. They are a
skilled and committed team who drive us forward on
every site. We have implemented a range of common
HR policies across the Group to ensure that we continue
to develop their skills and keep them up to date with
emerging trends and technologies. To support our
growth plans, it is important that TPG continues to be
a stimulating and rewarding place to work so that we
retain this talent and recruit the right people when
needs arise.
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Looking forwards
Strategic progress with key accounts
TPG continues to pursue active positions in our core
markets, and opportunities to grow into other areas.

proposition as new managed support solution
opportunities have emerged at other similar facilities.

In our defence sector we captured £2.6m in two export
orders at the beginning of the year. These were with
our long-term partner DCNS, on the French Barracuda
programme and with another south-east Asian main
contractor. This was followed in May by an order from
another south-east Asian main shipbuilder worth £3.4m.
These system-build contracts were complemented by
an order from Babcock in the UK for £1.95m for overhaul
of equipment already in service on two Royal Navy
submarines.

The Group was accredited under the Fit-4-Nuclear
initiative by the Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing
Research Centre which aims to position industry to
succeed in civil nuclear power programmes. Through this
activity we have been building connections with industry
leaders such as Rolls Royce, where our shared presence
in nuclear submarine activity can be translated into the
UK’s nuclear power sector.

These orders are a clear representation of the breadth
of the Maritime business, both geographically and in
service type, being a mix of new build and through-life
support. All these orders are with long-term partners
for multi-year deliveries that contribute to the “lumpy”
nature of the order book in this sector.

In January 2015 we announced our exit from several
development contracts for compressor systems. These
actions removed our exposure to ongoing development
costs in those projects and left the Group with a
portfolio of commercially sustainable projects with
lower technical and financial risk.

Whilst the energy markets have faced well reported
issues, our continued presence in this sector has led
to new prospects and pull-through of other Group
capabilities with our established customers.

To further rationalise our approach to R&D, particularly
concerning the prototype build activities, we announced
in March our intentions to optimise activities through
closure of the Slough Technology Centre. The Design and
Technology team has been reorganised and migrated
to more suitable premises, also in Slough. The resulting
savings in operating costs are approximately £0.8m per
year. Physical build of prototypes will be carried out at
the Group’s other facilities, again making savings through
use of existing capacity.

During the year we have progressed the development
of turbo-generators for the gas pressure let-down
application and provided technical guidance to
Hayward Tyler at the early stages of an equipment
development programme.
We have strengthened our relationship with Spirax
Sarco towards volume system deliveries. In March 2015
we signed a ten-year, exclusive, global licensing and
manufacturing agreement for packaged steam products
containing TPG micro-turbines and compressors. This
was followed in June by an initial order for five microturbine units and an additional spares package to begin
the ramp up of system deliveries.
These three relationships demonstrate an emerging
template for commercial development sales to large
equipment manufacturers. They underline the strategic
shift to revenue generating R&D rather than cash
consuming as was the case in prior years.
Our team in Scotland has continued to develop
equipment support services with Ineos at the
Grangemouth site. This has proved to be a valuable

Transforming the R&D Model

The focus of the Design and Technology team has been
to maintain our innovative approach, and to apply it as a
revenue generator with clear financial justification. This
was demonstrated in December with the announcement
of our participation in the Cryohub development
programme alongside a consortium of industrial and
academic leaders.
Adapting to Shifting Customer Needs
The Group has successfully positioned itself to support
the whole life of complex equipment in strategically
important market sectors. This has been based upon
excellent technical capability that creates systems
built to the highest standards of quality and reliability.
With the addition of through-life support services we
can move with our established customers as their

objectives change. We can respond quickly to new build
requirements, yet if capital projects are constrained and
customers look for refurbishment or life extension, we
have the methods and processes in place to support
this as well. When new horizons open for our customers,
we have the analysis and design skills to explore the
potential with them, and the experience to turn
concepts into reality.
Working flexibly like this gives us advantages over larger
and more cumbersome main contractors whilst having
the breadth of capabilities that smaller companies
lack. It is a true implementation of our previously
stated strategic goal to build upon our close links with
customers and markets to ensure we are positioned to
meet their engineering challenges.
Development Through M&A
We looked at our position in technology and capabilities
to serve our market to the best effect, and identified
both gaps and overlaps in our existing activities. One
key gap was in metal fabrication, where a lot of the
delivery was sent out to subcontractors for precision
cutting and forming.
In February 2015, we announced the acquisition of Shaw
Sheet Metal, a specialist laser cutting and sheet metal
fabrication business based near Oldham, approximately
ten miles from the Dukinfield plant. They have brought
profitable business to the Group, and have absorbed
some of the work that was previously outsourced.
This means we have greater end-to-end control of our
engineering delivery and enjoy positive effects on Group
margins as a result.
The Group will continue to explore opportunities to add
capability and value. Affordable scale opportunities will
be qualified to meet suitability tests that demonstrate
consistency with the Group’s specialist engineering
theme with products or services in adjacent spaces
to our existing offerings and which can be reasonably
linked into a connected proposition.

Examples may include:

• E lectronic control systems, sensors & actuators –
technologies and systems to work alongside our
existing motors and generators to deliver larger
system scope in-house

• N
 ational security technologies – extending the

scope of our defence systems and services into
adjacent areas

• S imulation, emulation and virtual systems – extending
existing analysis, design and modelling capability with
software tools

• Outsourcing engineering services – extending the

footprint of our managed services proposition with
similar services in new markets

Suitable companies will have relationships that allow
us to widen our presence into new markets, may offer
vertical integration to improve delivery margins and have
the potential to add immediate or short-term value
to the Group.

Summary and outlook
From this opening position and with the prospects for
our growing services businesses, we look forward
to continuing our progress into profitability and
growth in 2016.
We have taken steps to structure the business around
four connected business units to provide a true throughlife engineering and services proposition to high value
sectors. This approach allows us to compete in our
markets for the best talent and to work with global
customers to the fullest extent.
The company will continue to grow both commercially
and technically through organic performance
improvement, focused commercial R&D and selected
merger & acquisition opportunities.
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Financial and Business Review
The business has reached a major milestone in 2015
achieving break even Adjusted EBITDA, driven by a
focus on operational improvements, risk management
and tighter cost control. This has been achieved in the
face of a challenging market in the Energy & Process
Industries sector.

Derren Stroud - Chief Financial Officer
The business has reached a major milestone in 2015 achieving break even Adjusted EBITDA, driven by a
focus on operational improvements, risk management and tighter cost control. This has been achieved in the
face of challenging markets in our Energy & Process Industries sector. The key headline achievements that
underpin the progress in year were:
• D
 elivered breakeven Adjusted EBITDA ahead
of schedule.
• C
 losing cash ended higher than market expectations at
£7.0m through tighter financial controls and reduced
R&D spend from £2.4m to £1.3m.
• A
 &D grew revenues by 7% and adjusted EBITDA by
30% as well as securing a strong closing order book of
£12.7m, providing good visibility of 2016 revenues.
• A
 &D delivered preliminary design work for the
replacement Trident submarines, and expects a multiyear order to follow in 2016.

• E
 &P, leveraging off existing compressor technology,
delivered a prototype machine for electricity generation
from gas pressure changes at power stations.
• Improved profit margins through tighter cost control.
• C
 ompleted the acquisition of Shaw Sheet Metal
enhancing the Group’s service offering and supporting
its evolution as a specialist engineering company.
• Exited from the Slough manufacturing, site relocating
production  facilities to Dukinfield. Achieved H2 2015
savings of £0.5m with expected annualised savings of
£0.8m.
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£m 14.0

£m 12.0

  2014     2 015

10.9

12.4
11.7

12.0

10.0
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  2014      2 015

9.6

10.0
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9.1

10.0

Financial Review

8.0

7.1

8.0

8.0

6.0

2015 was major breakthrough year for the Group delivering break
even at an Adjusted EBITDA level.

6.0

4.0

4.0

2.1

Group KPIs

2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

20.4

21.7

Operating loss

(2.3)

(3.9)

Adjusted EBITDA loss

0.0

(2.1)

7.0

9.6

14.5

17.3

Net Cash
Closing order book

2.0

2.0

1.5
0.9

0.0

A&D

E&P

Year-on-year market sector revenues

0.0

TP Maritime

0.9

TP D&T

TP Engineering

Year-on-year business unit revenues

TP Managed
Solutions

Group operating losses improved by £1.6m to £2.3m in 2015 from a £3.9m loss in 2014 reflecting tighter financial
control and reduced self-funded R&D. The Group will continue to manage its costs to support business performance.
Improved results were returned by both market sectors, and central cost also reduced by £0.4m.

2015
£m

2014
£m

Change
£m

A&D

3.0

2.3

0.7

E&P

(1.9)

(2.9)

1.0

Central costs

(1.1)

(1.5)

0.4

Adjusted EBITDA

0.0

(2.1)

2.1

2015
£m

2014
£m

Change
£m

TP Maritime

2.7

2.1

0.6

• T PG Maritime

TP Managed Solutions

0.2

0.2

0.0

• T PG Design & Technology

TP Design & Technology

(1.6)

(2.9)

1.3

• T PG Engineering

TP Engineering

(0.2)

0.0

(0.2)

• T PG Managed Solutions

Central costs*

(1.1)

(1.5)

0.4

In this report, analysis is given by both the reported market sectors and also by the business units
into which we are now structured.

Adjusted EBITDA loss

0.0

(2.1)

2.1

Year-on-year market sector Adjusted EBITDA
Set against the backdrop of a contracting oil and gas market, revenues reduced by 6% to £20.4m (2014: £21.7m).
The business achieved Adjusted EBITDA breakeven through strategic decisions to restructure the business and exit
certain development contracts.

We have historically reported segment results by the following market sectors:

• A
 erospace & Defence (A&D)
• E nergy & Process Industries (E&P)
Following refinement of the Group’s strategy, the business will report segment results
along four business units:

Year-on-year business unit Adjusted EBITDA
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Cash
Cash burn in the year was £2.6m versus prior year
of £4.2m, an improvement of £1.6m driven by tighter
financial control and a shift in focus to customer
funded R&D projects. R&D spend within TPG Design &
Technology, reduced to £1.3m (2014: £2.4m). The Group
will continue to invest in commercially viable projects but
at a level that supports the growth plans of the business.
At the year-end, strong cash collections resulted in
a healthy trade receivables position, the balance of
which comprised mostly current debt, which has
subsequently been received. Amounts due from contract
customers were elevated but reflect the nature of long
term contracts with major blue chip and government
customers where milestone payments are spread over

Cash flow movements

Fluctuations in working capital during the year are
driven by the nature of long term contracts across the
Group. The first half negative cash outflow of £3.0m
was balanced by a greater inflow in the second half
as forecast by the business, underpinned by a strong
last quarter mainly as a result of initial payments on a
number of material contracts.

Major cash-flow movements in year
£m 12.0

£m 1.0
0.5
0.0

the duration of the contract. Trade and other payables
were lower than prior year reflecting the timing of
supplier payment runs over the year end period.

10.0

9.6

(1.0)

H1

(0.3)
H2

(0.1)

(1.2)

8.0

-0.5

7.0
6.0

-1.0
-1.5

4.0

-2.0
2.0
-2.5
-3.0

■  Operational Cash Flow
■ Investing and Financing Activities

0.0
2014

Acquisitions

Exceptionals

Operating
Cash Flows

Central

2015

-3.5

Movements like these in working capital are part of the
nature of our business, and are not indicative of poor
contracts or issues on recoverability of cash.

Overall, the Group’s cash balance finished at £7.0m,
significantly better than market expectations. The
directors believe that the Group has sufficient cash
funds to support its underlying business needs.

Acquisition

Order book

The Company announced the acquisition of Shaw Sheet
Metal Co. Ltd (“SSM”) in February 2015. The purchase
was completed for a cash consideration of £0.8m,
funded using the Group’s cash (£9.6m at 31 December
2014) with an expected payback of less than 3 years.
SSM operates from two facilities in Oldham and is active
in laser cutting and specialist sheet metal fabrication.

The Group order book closed at £14.5m. This was
slightly down on the 2014 value of £17.3m and reflects a
combination of factors that relate to the timing of large
defence sector contracts and deferral of some activity in
the oil & gas market.

The acquisition supports TP Group’s evolution as a
specialist engineering company. It integrates addedvalue fabrication with specialist engineering services for
our established energy and petrochemical processing
customers. Beyond this, it allows us to open new
opportunities for high-integrity fabricated products in TP
Group’s other markets, particularly in the Aerospace &
Defence sector, and gain new customers through SSM’s
established relationships.

The Group participates in major programmes such
as the build of the UK submarine capability. These
programmes are characterised by large, multi-year
contracts which cause the order book to swing in this
way. New build deferrals in the oil & gas market reduced
the order intake for the Engineering business unit.
World capacity is expected to at least be maintained, so
projects will continue to be launched, and maintenance
and refurbishment will increase, both of which will be
positive for the Group.
We also enjoy a level of small scale work which comes
from framework agreements and other long term
relationships. This is expected to continue and when
combined with the opening order book provides visibility
of more than half of the forecast revenues for 2016.
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Exceptional costs

Going concern

Infrastructure

During the year the Group incurred one off exceptional costs of £1.0m through the closure of the Slough
manufacturing facility and re-organisation of the TPG Design & Technology business. £0.6m of this is non-cash.

The directors are satisfied that, notwithstanding
economic uncertainty, the Group has adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future (being a minimum period of 12 months), and
accordingly continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the accounts. In reaching this conclusion,
the directors have considered forecasts that cover a
period of greater than twelve months from the date of
the approval of these financial statements.

The directors’ made the decision in early 2015 to
optimise production facilities and engineering capability
in line with the evolving business needs. This resulted
in the Group exiting from the Slough Technology
Centre exercising an early break clause in the lease.
Manufacturing capability has been transferred to the
Dukinfield plant whilst a smaller office facility has been
retained in Slough to house the design team, focused
on delivering chargeable applications for TP Group’s
existing technology and intellectual property.

Principal risks & uncertainties
In addition to the financial risk management that is
detailed in note 26 to the financial statements, there
are a number of risks and uncertainties that could have
a material impact on the Group. Risks are reviewed by
the Board and appropriate processes and controls have
been implemented in respect of monitoring and control.
Principal business risks are as follows:

• C
 ommercial contracts for customers may be large

and long term, with risks relating to contract delivery
and performance, including cost. Internal procedures
are designed to ensure that risks are managed on
a contract-by-contract basis so that contracts are
successfully delivered to customers on time, on
budget and to the highest quality specification.

• T he Group has a niche position in the naval defence

market supplying specialist equipment to a relatively
narrow customer base and the main external market
risks relate to political and socio-economic factors.

• G
 eneral economic conditions and uncertainties on

potential partners’ plans for capital expenditure may
affect both the scale and timing of new contracts.

• T echnological change and the potential of competitors
to develop alternative solutions may threaten the
business. In key areas of technology, the Group has
registered patents and continues to monitor relevant
third party patents. In addition, developed know-how
across the Group provides an effective barrier to
competition.

• It is important to retain key employees in the

development of the Group’s technologies and
execution of its business plan. The Group seeks to
avoid over dependence upon specific employees and
formally documents key areas.

The Group seeks to retain staff and encourage their
long-term commitment by providing competitive
remuneration packages.
The principal financial risk is the management
of cash during the development phase for the
Group including:

• L iquidity risk - the Group seeks to manage financial

risk by ensuring that sufficient liquidity is available to
meet foreseeable needs and by investing cash assets
safely and profitably. The Group’s policy throughout
the year has been to achieve this objective through
management’s day-to-day involvement in business
decisions rather than setting maximum or minimum
liquidity ratios. Group policies are aimed at
maximising liquidity and return on cash through the
use of short and medium term bank deposits.

• F oreign exchange risk - the Group undertakes

contracts denominated in foreign currencies
(principally Euro and US dollar) leading to an
exposure in exchange rate movements for both sales
and purchase transactions. Where they cannot be
offset, forward exchange contracts are utilised to
minimise the risk.

• C
 redit risk - the Group’s principal financial assets are

cash and trade receivables. The credit risk associated
with cash is managed by ensuring that counterparties
have high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies.

• Interest rate risk - the Group’s policy throughout the

year has been to place funds on deposit directly with
an approved list of UK banks.

The forecasts take into account the Group’s existing
cash resources, and include consideration of certain
downside scenarios, in particular in relation to TPG
Design & Technology where there is inherently greater
uncertainty as to the future cash flows of that business.
The directors have also considered the mitigating
actions available to them, including the ability of
management to make certain reductions to the Group’s
discretionary expenditure if required.

The exceptional cost of exiting Slough was £1.0m, which
was offset by in year savings of £0.5m with full year
savings of £0.8m anticipated in 2016.
The exit has and will enable the business to benefit
from cost synergies, whilst ensuring it has a sustainable
operational footprint, capable of supporting a number
of ongoing organic growth opportunities.
Heavy engineering and fabrication continues to
take place at the Dukinfield and Oldham plants with
Portsmouth continuing to provide high technology
build, test and assembly functions.
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Energy and Process Industries
We develop, build and support high-integrity systems for a diverse range of customers including upstream
energy producers, downstream petrochemical processors and refiners, power generators, equipment
manufacturers and engineering, procurement and construction companies (EPCs).
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2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

8.0

10.0

Operating profit

(3.3)

(3.5)

Adjusted EBITDA

(1.9)

(2.9)

Margin

(24%)

(29%)

1.8

2.9

KPIs

Business Review – Market Sectors
Aerospace and Defence
In this sector, our customers are typically armed forces, security services and large prime contractors. We provide
them with atmosphere control systems, spares, through-life equipment support, specialist functional support and
supply-chain management services.
KPIs

2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

12.4

11.7

Operating profit

2.2

1.4

Adjusted EBITDA

3.0

2.3

Margin

24%

20%

Closing order book

12.7

14.4

During the year we delivered to global submarine
operators and constructors:

• P
 reliminary design work for the atmosphere control

equipment for the replacement Trident submarines. It
is expected that a multi-year order for detailed design,
development and qualification work will follow in 2016.

• O
 ne boat set of equipment built and tested for the
continuing Astute class submarine.

• C
 ombined Oxygen Generation System (COGS)

commissioned and set to work on the next Astute
submarine in the sequence.

• C
 O2 removal equipment to an existing
Asian customer.

• S pares, system and in-service support to the UK fleet.

For surface fleets we delivered:

• M
 anaged supply chain services for atmosphere
filtration for chemical, biological agents

• A
 ir distribution systems
We signed new contracts for:

• T he build of four CO2 removal units from an
Asian shipbuilder.

• R
 efurbishment and upgrade of complete atmosphere
control equipment for several in-service UK
submarines.

• D
 esign work for a new CO2 removal unit for an existing
customer for installation on new class of submarine
with expected design and build contract to be placed
in 2016.

• D
 evelopment work of a CO2 removal unit with expected
order for production units in 2016 from a
new customer.
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Closing order book

The business faces a climate of falling upstream energy production with consequential challenges downstream.
Many new equipment contracts have been postponed and there appears to be a rebalancing of business with
increasing short-term refurbishment to keep equipment operable. Revenue therefore fell in 2015 with a similar
effect on the closing order book.
The strategy for development activity changed to focus on commercial projects rather than self-funded
programmes. This gave us the opportunity to manage costs more closely, allowing the business to deliver £1.0m
improvement in the Adjusted EBITDA loss.
In the upstream markets we:

In the renewable energy field we:

• C
 ompleted design for a platform compressor for BP.

• A
 chieved three major milestones toward commercial

This project awaits funding for equipment build and
is a significant opportunity once the energy markets
recover.

• A
 nnounced our exit from several development
contracts for compressor systems.

In downstream refining and processing we:

• C
 ompleted the build of seven shell and tube heat

exchangers for an EPC for onward deployment at an
offshore UK refinery.

• C
 ontracted for major refurbishment of multiple heat

exchangers at an additional UK refinery, based upon
our capability in specialised tubing.

rollout of the micro-turbine expander/generator
product with Spirax Sarco Engineering plc.

• D
 elivered a prototype turbo-expander for electricity
generation from gas pressure reductions at gas
power stations.

• Joined an EU-funded project in energy storage which
begins in 2016. This as an excellent fit for our core
technologies.
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Business Unit Commentary
TPG Maritime

TPG Engineering

TPG Maritime is the equipment supply and support business of Atmosphere Control International, based in
Portsmouth. It uses deep technical knowledge and intellectual property, as well as intimate knowledge of the
30
submarine environment, to integrate systems into vessels at the design stage and support them through their
lifetime. The business has a track record of first class delivery and service over decades of system life.

KPIs

2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

10.9

9.6

Operating profit

1.9

1.2

Adjusted EBITDA

2.7

2.1

Margin

25%

22%

Closing order book

12.3

13.8

2015 was an excellent year with strong performance across all KPIs including Adjusted EBITDA growth of 29% on
revenue growth of 14%. While Closing Order Book declined slightly, this is largely due to the nature of the defence
pipeline and timing of major contracts, one of which is now anticipated in mid 2016.
The worldwide submarine market continues to grow with many major builders reporting strong order books for
advanced submarines that are likely to use TPG’s technology.

TPG Design & Technology
Design & Technology (D&T) is founded upon the development work undertaken by Corac Energy Technologies in
Slough. The business has created a portfolio of patented IP, and these technologies are deployed either as a central
part of an end-user system, or at the core of a volume commercial product, produced by an OEM with technology
licensed to the manufacturer.

2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

0.9

0.9

Operating profit

(2.8)

(3.4)

Adjusted EBITDA loss

(1.6)

(2.9)

R&D Spend

1.3

2.4

Closing order book

0.4

0.5

KPIs

In 2015, D&T continued the progress in its renewable energy activities. Challenges facing the oil & gas industry directly
impacted our developments in the upstream sector.
Despite the challenges, revenues for the year remained stable at £0.9m (2014: £0.9m) which primarily came from
closing out the BP design phase and ongoing projects in renewable energy. D&T continued its focus on commercially
viable activities based on our core technologies. R&D spend reduced to £1.3m (2014: £2.4m). This, coupled with the
business transformation activities has led to reduced operating losses of £2.8m (2014: £3.4m) and adjusted EBITDA
losses fell by 45% to £1.6m (2014: £2.9m). D&T’s order book is £0.4m (2014: £0.5m) at year end.

The Engineering business unit is the combined activity of Hunt Thermal Technologies in Dukinfield and Shaw
Sheet Metal in Oldham. The business is a leading supplier of heat exchangers operating in demanding applications,
with complex metallurgy and highly specialised technical requirements in markets like downstream oil and gas or
chemical process industries.

The business operates with four primary business streams

• L arge-scale shell and tube heat exchangers

• E
 quipment support on-site at major installations

• B
 espoke extended surface heat exchangers

• S heet metal work and fabrication
2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

7.1

9.1

Operating profit

(0.5)

(0.1)

Adjusted EBITDA loss

(0.2)

0.0

Margin

(3%)

0%

Closing order book

1.3

2.5

KPIs

The Engineering business unit faced difficult trading conditions during 2015 and saw revenues fall by £2.0m. The
business mix changed as we developed activities in refurbishment and site support. We expanded our customer base
for these services and anticipate that this will position the Group better at those sites for ongoing support and new
build projects when they arise.
The order book reflects trading conditions as contract values have reduced, although the continuous feed of call-off
orders from framework contracts and long term relationships remains strong.

TPG Managed Solutions
Managed Solutions is a new business area for TP Group, aimed at expanding our presence as a long-term service
provider in our key markets. The business unit origins are the Filter-HESS contract with the Ministry of Defence, which
provides a managed supply chain and logistics support for atmosphere filters fitted on Royal Navy ships.
The intention is to work closely with the MoD to support additional areas of activity as their procurement and contract
management resources are reduced. TPG has strong relationships in this sector and these will form the basis of our
offer. Long-term objectives are to replicate these services outside the Aerospace and Defence sector.

2015
£m

2014
£m

Revenue

1.5

2.1

Operating profit

0.2

0.2

Adjusted EBITDA

0.2

0.2

Margin

13%

10%

Closing order book

0.5

0.5

KPIs
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Phil Cartmell
Chief Executive Officer
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Phil Cartmell was appointed to the Board in September 2009. He has a highly active career in business,
having formerly been Chief Executive of Vega Group plc between 2001 and 2008, where he grew the
company into a leading European aerospace and defence business. In February 2008, Vega Group was
acquired by Italian multi-national, Finmeccanica, for a substantial premium. Phil has served as a NonExecutive Director and adviser for a number of companies including Alterian plc a leading provider of
Global Information Management solutions, where he was Non-Executive Chairman until its acquisition
by SDL plc in January 2012 and Trafficmaster.
Derren Stroud
Chief Financial Officer
Derren Stroud was appointed to the Board in March 2016. Derren, a member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants has over 20 years’ of industry experience, including senior finance roles at
Retail Decisions, Envox and Safenet. He has worked within a range of specialist innovation and
engineering businesses, with both public and private equity backing, serving a global customer base
from manufacturing and commercial sites worldwide.
Simon Kings
Executive Director
Simon joined the group in 2014 as Managing Director of Atmosphere Control International, and was
appointed to the Board in April 2015. Simon joined from Raytheon UK, where he was Business
Development Director following a 30 year naval career including active service as Commodore and with
responsibility for the UK's naval shipbuilding programme, ship sensors and weapons.
Martin Blomley
Executive Director
Martin joined as Corporate Development Director in 2012, and was appointed to the Board in April
2015. Prior to this Martin was Senior Vice President of Joint Programmes for Telespazio SpA, a
Finmeccanica/Thales company. He has held other senior management roles at Finmeccanica, Vega
Group, Origin and SAP.

The Report and Accounts are approved by the board of directors and signed on their behalf on 18 April 2016 by:
Derren Stroud
Chief Financial Officer 				
Registered number: 3152034 • Registered office: A2/1024, Cody Technology Park, Farnborough, Hampshire GU14 0L
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Board of directors (continued)

Report of the Directors

Non-Executive Directors

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Richard King
Non-Executive Chairman

Principal activity

Richard King was appointed to the Board in February 2011 and became Chairman in March 2014.
Richard spent 35 years with Ernst & Young LLP, becoming Managing Partner of UK & Ireland and a
member of both the EMEIA Board and Global management group. Richard is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and worked extensively with growing businesses. Richard
is Chairman of both Grass Roots plc and BIE Executive Ltd, and is an advisory partner at Rockpool
Investments LLP and is on the advisory board of Frogmore Property Group. He is also Chair of Trustees
for the Willow Foundation, a charitable organisation for seriously ill children and adults.

TP Group is a group of UK based advanced technology, engineering and services business units.

Andrew McCree
Non-Executive Director

TPG Engineering – activities include the manufacture of heat exchange equipment used in the heating
and cooling of large scale industrial processes and other fabricated structures.

Andrew McCree was appointed to the Board in October 2014 and chairs the Remuneration Committee.
Andrew has over 35 years' experience of energy and environmental technology and consulting
businesses, with an extensive knowledge of technologies and markets. Following his early career with
BP Exploration, he then joined the UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) and in 2005 became Chief
Executive of AEA Technology. Since 2011 he has worked for Gustin Partners, a US specialist consulting
business. His principal role has been to advise on a range of defence, energy and climate change
matters working with both government agencies and private sector clients.

TPG Managed Solutions –services to major organisations through prime contracting and provision of
specialist resources.

TPG Maritime – activities include the provision of air purification equipment for submarines including
oxygen/hydrogen generation and purification, air handling and distribution systems.
TPG Design and Technology – specialises in the design and development of high-speed
turbomachinery. Innovative compressors and expander generators use patented technologies.

Results and dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2014 - £Nil) and propose that the loss be
added to the deficit on reserves.
Research and development
Total R&D expenditure in the year, including £1.3m cost of sales within TPG Design and Technology
(“TPG D&T”) (2014 - £1.5m), was £1.3m (2014 - £2.4m), all of which was charged to the income
statement in the year.
Capital management
Capital consists of equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent.
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains sufficient capital
to support the on-going expenditure requirements of the business with a view to future commercial
success from these activities in order to maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of working capital
requirements. To adjust the capital structure, the Group issues new shares. The Group currently has no
debt financing.
Creditor payment policy
The Group and Parent Company seek to agree payment terms with their suppliers in advance of a
transaction and will pay in accordance with the agreed terms as long as the Group and Parent
Company are satisfied that the supplier has provided goods and services in accordance with the order.
The Group’s creditor payment period was 49 days (2014 - 60 days). The Parent Company’s creditor
payment period was 32 days (2014 - 45 days).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Report of the Directors (continued)

Employee involvement

Auditor

The Group’s policy is to encourage involvement at all levels, as it believes that this is essential for the
success of the business.

All of the current directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any information needed by the company's auditor for the purposes of their audit and to
establish that the auditor is aware of that information. The directors are not aware of any relevant audit
information of which the auditor is unaware.

Disabled employees
Full consideration is given to employment applications from disabled persons who have the necessary
aptitudes and abilities. Where an employee becomes disabled while employed, arrangements are made
wherever practicable to maintain employment. The company seeks to develop the skills of disabled
persons by providing applicable training, taking into account their particular needs.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint them
as auditors will be proposed at the next annual general meeting.
By order of the board

Directors' and officers' liability insurance
The Parent Company has purchased liability insurance covering its directors and officers.
Directors and their Interests
The directors during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:
Executive
P Cartmell
M Crawford (resigned 1 February 2016)
M Blomley (appointed 14 April 2015)
S Kings (appointed 14 April 2015)
D Stroud (appointed 1 March 2016)
Non-executive
R King
J Henderson (resigned 16 September 2015)
A McCree
Directors’ interests in shares are shown in the Remuneration report.
Related party transactions
These have been disclosed within note 30 to the accounts.
Change of registered office
The head office team relocated to Farnborough during the year as was part of the general review of
facilities and locations. Farnborough is a centre for technology and engineering and places us in the
midst of a community of leading global defence and energy industry players. The Group’s registered
office was therefore changed in September to A2/1064, Cody Technology Park, Farnborough,
Hampshire GU14 0LX.

C MacPherson
Company Secretary
18 April 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Principles of Good Corporate Governance

Application of Principles (continued)

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance. It has adopted procedures to
institute good governance insofar as it is practical and appropriate for an organisation of its size and
nature, notwithstanding the fact that companies that have securities traded on the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange (“AIM”) are not required to comply with the
Combined Code as appended to the Listing Rules issued by the Financial Services Authority. Whilst not
required to comply with the Code, the Group has chosen to give selected disclosures which they
believe are necessary or valuable to readers.

Accountability and audit

As the Group grows, it will regularly review the extent of its corporate governance practices and
procedures. At its current stage of development, the Parent Company does not consider it appropriate
to be fully compliant with the Combined Code.
Application of Principles
Directors
During the year the Board consisted of two full time executive directors (four after April 2015) and three
non-executive directors (two after September 2015). The Board met nine times in the year and is
provided with relevant information on financial, business and corporate matters prior to meetings.
The Board is responsible for overall Group strategy, acquisition and divestment policy, approval of the
budget, approval of major commercial contracts and capital expenditure projects and consideration of
significant operational and financial matters. The Board monitors the exposure to key business risks and
reviews the progress of the Group towards achievement of its budgets and forecasts. This is achieved by
the close involvement of the executive directors in the day-to-day running of the business and by regular
reports submitted to and considered at meetings of the Board and subcommittees. The Board also
considers employee issues, key appointments and compliance with relevant legislation.
The Board has both an Audit and a Remuneration Committee. The Board do not consider it necessary
to constitute a separate Nominations Committee and all members of the Board are consulted on the
potential appointment of a new director or a company secretary.
All directors can receive appropriate training as necessary and are able to take independent
professional advice in relation to their duties if necessary at the Parent Company’s expense. Directors
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law, the directors are required to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European
Union.
Under company law, the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:


properly select and apply accounting policies



present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information



provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance



assess the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Relationship with shareholders

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Board attaches a high importance to maintaining good relationships with all shareholders. The
Board holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders to keep them updated on the Group’s
performance, strategy, management and Board membership. In addition, the Board welcomes as many
shareholders as possible to attend the Annual General Meeting and encourages an open discussion
after the formal proceedings. The Executive Directors give regular briefings to a number of analysts,
who cover the technology sector and actively encourages more analysts to follow the Group.

The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with IFRS, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and the
management report, which is incorporated into the directors' report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Group taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.
As far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant information of which the Parent Company’s
auditor is unaware. Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant information and to establish that the Parent
Company’s auditor is aware of that information.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Remuneration Report

Application of Principles (continued)

Unaudited Information

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors, (two after September 2015). The
Committee has specific terms of reference that deal with its authority and duties. It meets at least twice
a year, with the Executive Directors, and the auditor attending by invitation. The Committee reviews the
independence and objectivity of the auditor each year. The Committee overviews the adequacy of the
Group and Parent Company's internal controls, accounting policies and financial reporting and provides
a forum through which the Company's external auditor reports to the non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of two non-executive directors and is chaired by Mr A.
McCree. Meetings were attended by the Chief Executive by invitation. The Remuneration Committee
sets and annually reviews the terms and conditions of employment of the executive directors. The
remuneration of non-executive directors is fixed by the Board as a whole. The Remuneration
Committee also monitors and reviews the Group-wide appraisal process and approves the proposals
from the executive directors for all employees' remuneration and option arrangements.

The Board has decided that the size of the Group does not justify a dedicated internal audit function.
This position will be reviewed as the Group's activities increase.

Remuneration Policy

Going Concern
Discussion of going concern is included within the accounting policies described in note 2 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.
Internal Control and Risk Management
The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group and Parent Company have processes to
identify, evaluate and manage key risks. The nature of the Group’s business comprises a mix of
commercial design, manufacturing and service/maintenance as well as on-going R&D. This calls for
rigorous cost analysis and market risk assessment. The system is designed to manage and minimise risk
of failure to achieve the Parent Company's strategic objectives, and can only provide reasonable, and
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors consider that the present system of internal control is sufficient for the needs of the
Group and Parent Company and adequately addresses the risks to which the Group is perceived to be
exposed.

The Parent Company's policy on executive directors' remuneration is to attract and retain high quality
executives by paying competitive remuneration packages relevant to each director's role, experience
and the external market. The packages include a basic salary, pension contributions and share options.
Up to 2010, and after 2013, options granted incorporated individual performance conditions. From
2010 to 2013, all new options were granted without performance conditions. In 2015, the options
granted on 21 May 2015 included a performance condition of being exercisable provided the midmarket price is no less than 15 pence.
Service Agreements
Executive Directors are employed on service contracts with either 6 or 12 month notice periods. NonExecutive Directors are appointed on three year contracts, with no notice period.
Audited Information
Directors' Emoluments

On behalf of the Board
Executive
P Cartmell
M Crawford
1
S Kings
1
M Blomley
3
J Carter

Richard King
Chairman, Audit Committee
18 April 2016

Non-executive
R King
J Henderson
A McCree
3
R Courtney OBE

1

Basic
salary
or fees
£000

Pension
contributions
£000

Other
benefits
£000

Total
emoluments
2015
£000

Total
emoluments
2014
£000

267
211
109
97
-

18
14
9
6
-

2
2
23
2
-

285
227
141
105
-

278
230
275

45
26
32
-

-

-

45
26
32
-

45
32
8
35

787

47

27

861

903

Directors’ Emoluments recorded relate only from date of appointment to board in April 2015
Includes a bonus of £22,000
3
Directors resigned during 2014
2
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Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Report (continued)

Directors' Share Options

Directors' Interests

The interests of the directors, who were in office at the end of the financial year, in options over the
shares of the Parent Company at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 were:

The directors who held office at the end of the financial year had the following beneficial interests in
the ordinary share capital of the Parent Company at 31 December 2015, at 31 December 2014 and at
the date of this report:

As at
31
December
2014
number

Exercised

Cancelled

in year
number

Issued

As at
31 December

in year
number

in year
number

2015
Number

Exercise
price (p)

Lapse date

Executive

Number held at

Number held at

Number held at

31 December 2015

18 April 2016

31 December 2014

Ordinary Shares of

Ordinary Shares of

Ordinary Shares of

10 pence each

10 pence each

10 pence each

1,896,720

2,096,720

1,896,720

P Cartmell

2,000,000

-

(2,000,000)

-

-

42.00

30 September 2019

P Cartmell

300,000

-

(300,000)

-

-

21.75

30 April 2020

M Crawford

370,207

370,207

370,207

P Cartmell

3,000,000

3,000,000

15.00

9 December 2020

R King

605,476

605,476

605,476

P Cartmell

4,000,000

4,000,000

10.00

9 April 2024

A McCree

180,000

180,000

180,000

S Kings

100,318

400,318

-

40,000

40,000

40,000

P Cartmell

-

-

-

2,300,000

2,300,000

10.00

21 May 2025

M Crawford

300,000

-

(300,000)

-

-

39.00

21 October 2019

M Crawford

200,000

-

(200,000)

-

-

34.75

14 December 2019

M Crawford

300,000

-

(300,000)

-

-

21.75

30 April 2020

M Crawford

1,950,000

1,950,000

15.00

9 December 2020

M Crawford

2,000,000

2,000,000

10.00

9 April 2024

M Crawford

-

-

-

800,000

800,000

10.00

21 May 2025

S Kings

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

10.00

5 October 2024

M Blomley

500,000

-

-

-

500,000

11.25

1 February 2022

M Blomley

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

14.00

23 January 2023

M Blomley

123,000

-

-

-

123,000

10.00

9 April 2024

Nonexecutive
R King

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

15.00

7 February 2021

A McCree

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

10.00

30 September 2024

The closing mid-market price of the Parent Company’s shares as quoted on the Daily Official List as
published by the London Stock Exchange was 2.75p at 31 December 2015 and in the period 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2015 was a closing mid-market high of 6.25 p per share and a low of 2.63p per
share.

P Cartmell

M Blomley

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

Andrew McCree
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
18 April 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

TO THE MEMBERS OF TP GROUP PLC (FORMERLY CORAC GROUP PLC)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

We have audited the financial statements of TP Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2015, which comprise the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position, the
consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity, the consolidated and parent company statement of cash
flows and the related notes 1 to 30. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditor
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibility statement within the corporate governance report, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2015 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion;

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Simon Olsen FCA
Senior Statutory Auditor for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor, Reading, UK
18 April 2016

Group
2015

2014

£'000

£'000

19,280
1,166
20,446

21,693
21,693

Note

Revenue
Existing operations
Acquisitions

3

Cost of sales

(14,834)

Gross profit

5,612

Distribution costs
Research and development costs

(304)
(76)

(233)
(928)

(7,527)

(6,905)

(2,364)
69

(3,927)
-

(2,295)

(3,927)

Administrative expenses
Operating (loss)/profit
Existing operations
Acquisitions

Adjusted EBITDA

3

Acquisition-related costs
Exceptional items
Share based payments
Operating loss
6

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

4,139

4

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Finance income

(17,554)

45

(2,112)

(1,328)

(1,339)

-

(110)

(976)

(322)

(36)

(44)

(2,295)

(3,927)

77
(2,218)

7

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
shareholders

311

34
(3,893)
172

(1,907)

(3,721)

(0.45)

(0.88)

Loss per share expressed in pence per share
Basic and diluted loss per share

8

All amounts relate to continuing activities. The notes on pages 50 to 89 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 31 December 2015

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Group

46
Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments
Amounts owed by EBT

9
10
11
12
13

Parent Company

2015

2014

2015

2014

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

4,953
9,514
560
-

4,953
9,923
1,007
-

130
15,027
44

3
19,047
74

15,027

15,883

15,201

19,124

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial assets
Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

14
17
18
19

Total assets

169
6,386
70
66
7,005

59
7,215
249
9,569

3,056
1,547

1,959
3,605

13,696

17,092

4,603

5,564

28,723

32,975

19,804

24,688

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

(5,756)

(7,606)

(2,310)

(345)

(5,756)

(7,606)

(2,310)

(345)

(1,713)
(1,096)

(1,985)
(1,355)

-

-

(2,809)

(3,340)

-

-

Total liabilities

(8,565)

(10,946)

(2,310)

(345)

Net assets

20,158

22,029

17,494

24,343

42,246
13,769
575
(561)
1,174
(37,045)

42,246
13,769
575
(561)
1,138
(35,138)

42,246
13,769
575
1,080
(40,176)

42,246
13,769
575
1,044
(33,291)

20,158

22,029

17,494

24,343

22
23

EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Capital redemption reserve
Own shares held by the EBT
Share-based payments reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

24

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf on
18 April 2016. The notes on pages 50 to 89 form part of these financial statements.

Phil Cartmell

Derren Stroud

Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

(Company number: 3152034)

Balance at
1 January 2014

Capital
Share redemption
premium
reserve
£'000
£'000

Sharebased
payments
reserve
£'000

47
Retained
earnings
£'000

Total
£'000

42,246

13,769

575

(561)

1,094

(31,417)

25,706

IFRS 2 share option
charge

-

-

-

-

44

-

44

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

-

(3,721)

(3,721)

Balance at
31 December 2014

42,246

13,769

575

(561)

1,138

(35,138)

22,029

IFRS 2 share option
charge

-

-

-

-

36

-

36

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

-

(1,907)

(1,907)

42,246

13,769

575

(561)

1,174

(37,045)

20,158

Balance at
31 December 2015

The notes on pages 50 to 89 form part of these financial statements.

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation
Provisions

Share
capital
£'000

Group
Own
shares
held by
EBT
£'000
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Group
2015
2014

Parent Company

48
Share
capital
£'000
Balance at
1 January 2014

Share
premium
£'000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£'000

Sharebased
payments
reserve
£'000

Retained
earnings
£'000

Note
Total
£'000

42,246

13,769

575

1,000

(31,340)

26,250

IFRS 2 share option charge

-

-

-

44

-

44

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

(1,951)

(1,951)

42,246

13,769

575

1,044

(33,291)

24,343

IFRS 2 share option charge

-

-

-

36

-

36

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

(6,885)

(6,885)

Balance at
31 December 2014

Balance at
31 December 2015

£'000

£'000

£'000

(2,218)

(3,893)

(7,049)

(2,427)

421
907
493
(77)
36
(86)

523
816
(34)
44
162

1
(8)
36
30
5,872
-

1
(34)
40
93
-

1,098

(3,191)

(933)

(800)

(1,876)
(259)

2,682
(507)

1,965
-

(328)
-

(1,561)

(3,398)

(86)

(3,455)

64

(25)

-

(1,497)

(3,423)

(86)

(3,455)

8
(204)
(886)

34
(165)
-

8
(128)
-

34
(1)
-

40

-

-

-

-

(1,852)

(2,896)

Net cash used in investing activities

(1,042)

(131)

(1,972)

(2,863)

Financing activities
Expenses of issue of shares
Repayment of hire purchase liabilities

(25)

(614)
(12)

-

(614)
-

Net cash from financing activities

(25)

(626)

-

(614)

(2,564)

(4,180)

(2,058)

(6,932)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

9,569

13,749

3,605

10,537

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

7,005

9,569

1,547

3,605

Operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Finance income
Share-based payment expense
Increase in impairment on loan to the EBT
Provision against long term inter-company loan
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease) in provisions

13
12

Income tax received/(paid)
42,246

13,769

The notes on pages 50 to 89 form part of these financial statements.

575

1,080

(40,176)

17,494

Parent Company
2015
2014

Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment
Long term loan to subsidiary

Net decrease in cash equivalents

The notes on pages 50 to 89 form part of these financial statements.

£'000

-

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1

2

Nature of operations

The principal activities of TP Group plc (formerly Corac Group plc) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
comprise:
TPG Maritime – activities include the provision of air purification equipment for submarines including
oxygen/hydrogen generation and purification, air handling and distribution systems.
TPG Design and Technology – specialises in the design and development of high-speed
turbomachinery. Innovative compressors and expander generators use patented technologies.
TPG Engineering – activities include the manufacture of heat exchange equipment used in the heating
and cooling of large scale industrial processes and other fabricated structures.
TPG Managed Solutions – services to major organisations through prime contracting and provision of
specialist resources.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

51
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the directors have considered the
standards and interpretations which have not been applied in these financial statements, were in
issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU) and only IFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ were considered to be relevant. The
directors are still assessing whether the application of both standards, once effective, will have a
material impact on the results of the company. Adoption of the other standards and interpretations
referred to above is not expected to have a material impact on the results of the company.
Application of these standards may result in some changes in presentation of information within the
company’s financial statements.
Going concern

TP Group plc (formerly Corac Group plc) (the “Parent Company”) is the Group’s ultimate parent
company, which is incorporated under the Companies Act and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The
address of the registered office of the Company is Cody Technology Park, Old Ively Road,
Farnborough, Hampshire, GU14 0LX. The Parent Company’s shares are listed on AIM.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future (being a minimum period of 12 months), and accordingly continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the accounts. In reaching this conclusion, the directors have
considered forecasts that cover a period of greater than twelve months from the date of the
approval of these financial statements. The forecasts take into account the Group’s existing cash
resources, and include consideration of certain downside scenarios, in particular in relation to TPG
D&T where there is inherently greater uncertainty as to the future cash flows of that business. The
Directors have also considered the mitigating actions available to them, including the ability of
management to make certain reductions to the Group’s discretionary expenditure if required.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.2 Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Group and
Parent Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements are set out below.

On 30 January 2015 the share capital of Shaw Sheet Metal Ltd (SSM) was acquired by the Group. On 2
November 2015 the trade, assets and liabilities were hived up to its immediate parent, Hunt Thermal
Technologies. Consequently, post 2 November 2015 SSM no longer trades.

The consolidated and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as adopted by the European Union. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling as this is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The measurement
bases and principal accounting policies of the Group and Parent Company are set out below. The
accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and in
some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January 2019)
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation: Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS
38 (effective 1 January 2016)
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to IAS 27) (effective 1 January 2016)
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to IAS 1 (effective 1 January 2016)
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to IAS 7 (effective 1 January 2017)
Annual improvements to IFRSs

i)

Recognition of revenue

Revenue from the provision of commercial and R&D services is recognised when the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably using the criteria set out below in note 2.5 “Revenues”. As a
consequence of the nature of these services, this requires the exercise of judgement, estimates and
assumptions that are subject to uncertainty. The estimation uncertainty with respect to revenues
from services is set out in note 2.3 “Estimation uncertainty”.
ii)

Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised when all of the conditions set out below in note 2.7 “Research
and development” have been met.
The Group’s management continually monitors expenditure to establish whether the recognition
requirements for the capitalisation of development costs have been met. The Group has not yet
capitalised any development costs as the criteria set out in IAS 38, “Intangible Assets”, have not been
met. R&D costs expensed for the year ended 31 December 2015 (including those classified as cost of
sales within TPG D&T) were £1.3m (2014 - £2.4m).

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2 Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

iii)

iv)
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Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the probability of future taxable income against which brought forward losses
can be utilised is based on the Group’s latest budget forecast, which is adjusted for significant nontaxable income and expenses and specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. If a
positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a loss, especially when it can be
used without time limit, a corresponding deferred tax asset is recognised in full.
2.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
When preparing the financial statements management undertakes a number of judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses based on historical experience and other factors considered reasonable at the time. Actual
outcomes are likely to differ from the estimates made by management and actual results will seldom
equal projected results.
Information about significant judgements, estimates and assumptions, which have the most
significant effect on the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, are
discussed below.
i)

Recognition of revenue

The revenue recognised from commercial and R&D services reflects management’s best estimate of
the contract’s outcome and stage of completion. The Group’s management review the contracts
monthly, including the costs to completion, which are subject to significant estimation uncertainty.
Details of the accounting policy are set out in note 2.5.
ii)

Share-based payments

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
(v)

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, or at the date that the need for remediation
under warranty becomes known, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the Group’s obligation.
(vi) Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it.

The calculation of the share-based payments expense utilises assumptions and estimates (e.g. share
volatility, future exercise rates) which may differ from actual results. Details of the accounting policy
are set out in note 2.16(ii).

2.4 Basis of consolidation

iii)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all
entities controlled by the company (its subsidiaries) and the TP Group Employee Benefit Trust (see
note 25) made up to 31 December each year.

Impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and investments in subsidiaries

Determining whether goodwill and other tangible and intangible assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and other tangible and
intangible assets have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in to line with those used by the group. All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Subsidiary undertakings are entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies to obtain benefits from its activities. The Group obtains and exercises control
through voting rights.
The TP Group Employee Benefit Trust, which is managed by an independent trustee, is an employee
share scheme established for the benefit of and as an incentive for the employees of the Group.
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2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)
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Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
The Parent Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its profit and loss account. The Parent Company’s result
for the year was a loss of £6.9m (2014 - £2.0m).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued))

2.5 Revenues (continued)
iii)

Financing from R&D partners

When the outcome of a transaction involving prototype and concept assessment, front end design,
feasibility studies and R&D work can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion at the balance sheet date, taking into account any preferential terms post
commercialisation.
Where the outcome of a transaction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the
extent of stage payments received.

2.5 Revenues

2.6 Cost of sales

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the
Group for goods supplied and services provided, excluding VAT and trade discounts. Revenue is
recognised upon the performance of services or transfer of risk to the customer.

For funded development projects within TPG D&T, cost of sales is deemed to represent that element
of R&D spend financed by development partners. For all other contracts (including all contracts
within Atmosphere Control International and Hunt Thermal Technologies) cost of sales represents
the actual costs of materials, direct labour and overheads incurred with reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the balance sheet date.

i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods
• the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

2.7 Research and development
Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.
Development costs incurred on specific projects are capitalised when all the following conditions are
satisfied:
•

ii)

Long term contracts

Where the outcome of a long-term contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date.
This is measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.
Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that total committed contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. The expected loss is only recognised to the
extent that there is a contractual obligation to deliver under the terms of the contract.

•
•
•

•
•

Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be available for use or
sale.
The Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.
The Group has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.
The intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits. Among other things, this
requires that there is a market for the output from the intangible asset or for the intangible
asset itself, or, if it is to be used internally, the asset will be used in generating such benefits.
There are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset.
The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be measured
reliably.

The Group has not yet capitalised any development costs as the criteria set out above have not been
met, and all such costs have been expensed as incurred.
The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs
necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Following initial recognition, the related asset is amortised over the
period of the expected future sales with impairment reviews being carried out at least annually. The
asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The Group has not yet capitalised any development costs, as the criteria set out above have not
been met.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.8 Finance income

2.12 Taxation

Finance income represents interest earned on cash deposits that is earned over the relevant period
and ‘market to market’ adjustments in respect of derivative financial assets for forward currency
exchange contracts.

Income tax recoverable in respect of R&D tax credits is recognised when the decision has been
taken to claim such amounts in cash. The Group has made claims for R&D tax credits under both
the Small or Medium Enterprise (SME) Scheme and under the large company Research and
Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC) Scheme. Claims under the SME Scheme are included in the
Income Statement under Income Tax; claims under the RDEC Scheme are grossed up for taxation at
the current applicable tax rate and are included in Cost of Sales with the corresponding tax charge
included as a charge within Income Tax. In 2015, a claim of £nil has been made under the SME
Scheme and included within Income Tax (2014 - £19,000) and a claim of £84,000 under the RDEC
Scheme has been included in Cost of Sales and a tax charge of £17,000 in Income Tax (2014
£250,000 in Cost of Sales and £50,000 tax charge).
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated residual value of all property, plant
and equipment by equal annual instalments on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
economic lives. The rates generally applicable are:
•
•
•

Computer equipment
Office furniture and fittings
Plant and machinery

33% per annum
20% per annum
10% to 20% per annum

Short leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of the lease.
Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of all depreciable assets at each reporting
date. At 31 December 2015, management assesses that the useful lives represent the expected
utility of the assets to the Group and Parent Company.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates future cash flows from the asset
based upon long term financial projections. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or scrappage of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in income.
2.10 Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are not transferred to
the Group are classified as operating leases and rentals payable are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

The income tax recoverable in respect of R&D cash tax credits is based upon management
estimates, judgements and assumptions considered reasonable at the time but the actual income
tax recoverable may differ from those estimates.
The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items that
are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred income tax liability is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. A deferred income tax asset is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. For management’s assessment of the probability
of future taxable income to utilise against potential deferred tax assets in respect of brought
forward losses, see note 2.2(iii).
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other shortterm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
2.14 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group or Parent Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

2.11 Finance leases and hire purchase commitments
Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset have passed to the Group, and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the balance sheet
and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s useful lives. The capital
elements of future obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts are included as liabilities in
the balance sheet. The interest elements of the rental obligations are charged to the income
statement over the periods of the leases and hire purchase contracts and represent a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A
financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus transaction costs where
appropriate, fair value adjustments are recorded through the profit and loss.
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2.14 Financial instruments (continued)

2.15 Equity

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.

Equity comprises the following:

i)

•
•
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Financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following
categories upon initial recognition:
•
•

loans and receivables;
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

•
•
•

The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and expense
is recognised in profit or loss or equity.
All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for
impairment at least at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to
determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below.
All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within “Finance costs” or “Finance income” except for impairment of trade receivables,
which is presented within “Administrative expenses”.

•

“Share capital” which represents the nominal value of equity shares.
“Share premium” which represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of
consideration received for equity shares, net of expenses of the share issue.
“Capital redemption reserve” which constitutes a non-distributable reserve, which arose on the
acquisition by the Company of its own shares.
“Own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust” which represents the costs of purchasing own
shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust.
“Share-based payment reserve" which represents equity-settled share-based employee
remuneration until such share options are exercised or lapse.
“Retained earnings” which represents retained profits and losses.

2.16 Employee benefits
i)

Defined Contribution Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution stakeholder pension scheme for employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group. The pension cost charged against
profits represents the amounts payable by the Group and is expensed as it becomes payable.
ii)

Share-based payment

The Group and Parent Company’s cash and cash equivalents fall into this category of financial
instruments.

All equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant, which is
ultimately recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding credit to
reserves.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are recognised at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted
where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Options with only time based vesting conditions are valued using a Black-Scholes model. Share
options issued with market based vesting conditions are measured using the Monte Carlo method.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when
other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. Impairment of trade
receivables are presented within “Administrative expenses”.
Fair value through profit or loss
This category comprises only in-the-money derivatives. They are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the finance income line.
ii)

Financial liabilities

If vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the
vesting period, based on the number of share options expected to vest. This estimate takes into
account a number of factors including performance conditions applying to the relevant options.
Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is
recognised in the current period.
No adjustment is made to any expense recognised in prior periods if share options ultimately
exercised are different to that estimated on vesting. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital, and where appropriate
share premium.

The Group and Parent Company’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables.

iii)

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or
loss, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The assets and liabilities of the Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT") have been included in the Group
accounts.

Employee benefit trust
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2.19 Goodwill
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iii)

Employee benefit trust (continued)

Any assets held by the Employee Benefit Trust cease to be recognised on the Group balance sheet
when the assets vest unconditionally in identified beneficiaries.
The costs of purchasing own shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust are shown as a deduction
against consolidated equity. The proceeds from the sale of own shares held increase consolidated
equity. Neither the purchase nor sale of own shares leads to a gain or loss being recognised in the
Group income statement.
(iv) Short-term employee benefit costs
The undiscounted amount of short-term benefits attributable to services that have been rendered
in the period are recognised as an expense, unless specifically required or permitted within the
scope of IFRS reporting to be included in the cost of an asset. Any difference between the amount
of cost recognised and cash payments made is treated as a liability or prepayment as appropriate.
2.17 Foreign currency translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the
functional currency of all group entities. Foreign currency transactions are translated into pounds
sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rates).
Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
re-measurement of monetary items at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.
2.18 Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of
exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under IFRS 3(2008) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that
deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS
12 Income Taxes.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date, and is
subject to a maximum of one year.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is
acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.
2.20 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
Intangible assets other than goodwill that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (see below) and any impairment losses. At each balance sheet date, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets,
the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least annually
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cashgenerating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2.21 Amortisation
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Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
life of intangible assets other than goodwill of between 5 and 15 years.

Segmental reporting (continued)

Central unallocated costs are specific costs associated with the Group’s AIM listing and other Group
operational costs that are not charged out to the operating companies.
The following table presents group revenue, profit and certain net asset information for each
market and business units.

2.22 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.
2.23 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

Revenue
A&D
E&P

12,477
7,969

11,676
10,017

Group revenue

20,446

21,693

2,180
(3,314)

1,351
(3,467)

(1,161)

(1,811)

(2,295)

(3,927)

Segment operating result
A&D
E&P
Central unallocated costs

Group loss from operations
Finance income

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Loss before income tax

3

Loss after tax

Segmental reporting

1

Income tax credit

77
(2,218)

34
(3,893)

311
(1,907)

172
(3,721)

Business segments
1

For management purposes, the Group reports as:
•
•

Aerospace and Defence (A&D) – systems and services for armed forces, security services and
large prime contractors
Energy and Process Industries (E&P) – systems and services for upstream energy producers,
downstream petrochemical processors and refiners, power generators, equipment
manufacturers and engineering, procurement and construction companies (EPCs).

Following the refinement of the Group’s strategy the business will be managed along four distinct
business units.
• TPG Maritime – activities include the provision of air purification equipment for submarines
including oxygen/hydrogen generation and purification, air handling and distribution systems.
• TPG Design and Technology – specialises in the design and development of high-speed
turbomachinery. Innovative compressors and expander generators use patented technologies.
• TPG Engineering – activities include the manufacture of heat exchange equipment used in the
heating and cooling of large scale industrial processes and other fabricated structures
• TPG Managed Solutions – services to major organisations through prime contracting and
provision of specialist resources

2014 Central unallocated costs have been restated to reflect the changes in segment
reporting and to be consistent with 2015 methodologies.
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Geographical segments
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2015
£'000

2014
£'000

Revenue
TPG Maritime
TPG Engineering
TPG Design and Technology
TPG Managed Solutions

10,948
7,067
901
1,530

9,593
9,081
937
2,082

Group revenue

20,446

21,693

Segment operating result
TPG Maritime
TPG Engineering
TPG Design and Technology
TPG Managed Solutions
Central unallocated costs

1,935
(473)
(2,843)
247
(1,161)

1,163
(85)
(3,382)
189
(1,812)

Group loss from operations

(2,295)

(3,927)

Finance income
Loss before income tax
Income tax credit
Loss after tax

77
(2,218)
311
(1,907)

34

65
The Group’s operations are solely in the United Kingdom although some of the Group’s revenues
are to customers outside the UK. All segment assets are located in the UK. The Group’s revenues
from external customers are analysed into the following geographical areas:
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

Geographical analysis - revenue
United Kingdom
Rest of European Union
North America
Asia
Middle East
Rest of the World

15,591
2,166
292
2,122
71
204

16,370
1,160
675
1,678
1,484
326

Total revenue

20,446

21,693

Information about major customers
Revenue includes sales from customers who contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue:

(3,893)
172
(3,721)

A&D
Customer 1
Customer 2
Customer 3
Total revenue

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

6,013
3,985
2,191

4,174
2,110
4,642

12,189

10,926
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A&D

E&P

£'000

£'000

Central
unallocated
costs
£'000

Results by Segment (continued)
Group
£'000

2015
Segment operating
result
Depreciation, amortisation
and impairment
Acquisition-related costs
Exceptional items
Share based payments
1

Adjusted EBITDA

2,180

(3,314)

(1,161)

(2,295)

844
-

483
976
-

1
36

1,328
976
36

3,024

(1,855)

(1,124)

45

2014
Segment operating
result
Depreciation, amortisation
and impairment
Acquisition-related costs
Exceptional items
Share based payments
1

Adjusted EBITDA

1

1,351

(3,467)

(1,811)

(3,927)

813
152
-

525
4

1
110
170
40

1,339
110
322
44

2,316

(2,938)

(1,490)

(2,112)

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and any other
acquisition-related charges, share based payment charges and exceptional items. The Acquisitionrelated costs in 2014 of £110,000 relate to the acquisition of Shaw Sheet Metal Company Ltd (see
note 29). Exceptional items are those items believed to be exceptional in nature by virtue of their size
and or incidence. Exceptional items in the current year comprise restructuring costs of £976,000,
including impairment of fixed assets of £493,000 and termination costs of £146,000 (2014 –
Exceptional items in 2014 comprised termination costs of £322,000).

2015
Segment
operating
result
Depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment
Acquisitionrelated costs
Exceptional
items
Share based
payments
Adjusted
1
EBITDA

2014
Segment
operating
result
Depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment
Acquisitionrelated costs
Exceptional
items
Share based
payments
Adjusted
1
EBITDA
1

67

TPG
Maritime

TPG
Engineering

TPG
D&T

TPG
MS

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(2,843)

247

1,933

(471)

Central
unallocated
costs
£'000

(1,161)

Group
£'000

(2,295)

844

229

254

-

1

1,328

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

976

-

-

976

-

-

-

-

36

36

2,777

(242)

(1,613)

247

(1,124)

45

1,163

(85)

(3,382)

188

(1,811)

(3,927)

813

102

423

-

1

1,339

-

-

-

-

110

110

152

-

-

-

170

322

-

-

4

-

40

44

2,128

17

(2,955)

188

(1,490)

(2,112)

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and any other acquisition-related
charges, share based payment charges and exceptional items. The Acquisition-related costs in 2014 of £110,000
relate to the acquisition of Shaw Sheet Metal Company Ltd (see note 29). Exceptional items are those items
believed to be exceptional in nature by virtue of their size and or incidence. Exceptional items in the current year
comprise restructuring costs of £976,000, including impairment of fixed assets of £493,000 and termination costs
of £146,000 (2014 - Exceptional items in 2014 comprised termination costs of £322,000).
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4

4

Operating loss

The Group operating loss for the year is stated after charging the following:

68
Group

Pension costs
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

7,669
815
445
36

7,779
827
457
44

8,965

9,107

907
421
493
76
939

816
523
928
775

Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Share based payment

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Research and Development
Operating lease expense – rent

Operating loss (continued)

Auditor's remuneration:
Audit fees
fees payable for the audit of the company and consolidated financial
statement
fees payable to the audit of the subsidiary companies

21
45

21
37

Total auditor remuneration

66

58

69
The Group operates a money purchase and a group stakeholder pension scheme. The assets of
these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in separately administered funds. The
pension charge represents contributions payable by the Group to these funds and amounted to
£445,000 (2014 - £457,000). No contributions were prepaid or overdue at 31 December 2015
(2014 - £Nil). The nature of the Group’s scheme ensures no further payment obligations exist
relating to past services.

5

Directors' emoluments

Key management of the Group are members of the board of directors. Key management personnel
remuneration includes the following expenses:
Group
Emoluments
Pension contributions paid to defined contribution pension
schemes
Other benefits
Termination payments

1

Non-audit fees
Fees payable for statutory and regulatory services
Corporate finance services
Tax compliance services
Tax advisory services

6
15

2
11
17
-

Total auditor remuneration

87

88

Staff numbers
The average number of employees, including Directors, employed by the Group during the year was
as follows:

Engineering
Business development
Administration

121
10
41

119
10
42

172

171

684
37

47
1

27
-

12
170

861

903

Remuneration of the highest paid Director included above is as follows:

Emoluments
Pension contributions
Other benefits

2014
Number

787

Includes a bonus payment of £22,000.

Group

2015
Number

2014
£'000

Four Directors, until April 2015, three, (2014 - three) accrued pension benefits during the year. No
Director exercised share options during the year (2014 - none).

Share-based payment expenses of £36,000 (2014 - £44,000) all arises from transactions accounted
for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions and are non-cash in nature.

Group

2015
£'000

6

2015

2014

£'000

£'000

267
18
-

260
17
1

285

278

2015
£'000

£'000

7
70

34
-

77

34

Finance income
Group
Interest on bank deposits
Gain on foreign exchange derivative financial assets

2014
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7

7

Taxation

Credit to consolidated income statement

70

Group
Corporation tax over prior year provision
Corporation tax - R&D charge:
Current year - RDEC tax charge
Prior year (over)/under provision

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

-

40

(17)
(7)

(50)
19

(24)

9

Deferred tax:
Arising on amortisation of acquired intangibles
Reversal of timing differences
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance
Adjustments in respect to prior year

181
12
158
(16)

163
-

Tax credit for year

311

172

The Group has claimed R&D tax credits under both the SME Scheme and the RDEC Scheme
– see note 2.12 for further details. The effect of tax rate change on opening balance of
£158,000 comprises £172,000 in relation to deferred tax liabilities offset by £14,000 in
relation to deferred tax assets.
The tax credit for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
20.25% (2014 - 21.5%). The differences are explained as follows:
Group
Loss on ordinary activities before tax
Loss on ordinary activities at the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 20.25% (2014 - 21.5%)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
Share based payments
R&D enhanced relief
Surrender of tax losses for R&D credit
Current year trading losses carried forward
Utilisation of losses brought forward
Other short term timing differences
Deferred taxation arising on amortisation of acquired
intangibles
Current year R&D tax charge
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect to change in tax rates
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Tax credit for the year

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

(2,218)

(3,893)

449

837

(42)
(134)
(7)
(252)
(1)
181

(135)
(58)
(10)
54
(32)
(867)
64
147
163

(17)
158
(24)

(50)
59

311

172

Taxation (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has approximately £20.5m (2014 - £19.9m) of unrelieved tax
losses for offset against future taxable profit. A deferred tax asset of £0.1m (2014 - £0.1m) has
been recognised in respect of £0.3m (2014 - £0.6m) of such losses (see note 17). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £20.2m (2014 - £19.3m), due to the
uncertainty of timing of the generation of future taxable profits.

8

Loss per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 is based upon a loss
after tax of £1,907,000 (2014 - £3,721,000) and a weighted average number of shares of
420,857,956 (2014 - 420,857,956). The weighted average number of shares has been reduced by the
weighted average number of shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust.
The issue of additional shares on exercise of employee share options would decrease the basic loss
per share and there is therefore no dilutive effect of employee share options.

9

Goodwill
Total
£'000

Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015

4,953

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Atmosphere Control International Limited and Hunt Thermal
Technologies Limited on 5 April 2012.
In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, goodwill is allocated to the
Group’s cash generating units, or groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill as analysed in the table
below:
Total
£'000

Atmosphere Control International Limited
Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited

4,351
602
4,953

The goodwill balance has been tested for annual impairment on the following basis:







The carrying values of goodwill have been assessed by reference to value in use.
Cash flows based on forecast information for the next financial year, which have been approved
by the Board.
The key assumptions on which the impairment tests are based on are a pre-tax discount rate of
12% (2014 – 10%) and a growth rate of 2% (2014 – 5%) on forecast cash flows.
The 2015 pre-tax discount rate has been verified by independent advisors.
Sensitivity analysis was undertaken on pre-tax discount and growth rates of 15% and 0%
respectively.
No impairments were identified as a result of both testing and sensitivity analysis performed.
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10

11

Other intangible assets
Technical
Know How
£'000

Customer
Relationships
£'000

Trade name
£'000

£'000

Cost
At 1 January 2014 and 1 January 2015
Additions

11,741
498

324
-

171
-

12,236
498

At 31 December 2015

12,239

324

171

12,734

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014
Charge for year

1,364
783

38
22

95
11

1,497
816

At 31 December 2014

2,147

60

106

2,313

874

22

11

907

3,021

82

117

3,220

72

Charge for year
At 31 December 2015

Property, plant and equipment

Total

Net book value
At 31 December 2014

9,594

264

65

9,923

At 31 December 2015

9,218

242

54

9,514

Short
leasehold
Improvements

Computer
equipment

Group

£'000

£'000

Office
furniture
and
fittings
£'000

Cost
At 1 January 2014
Additions

1,631
-

464
45

1,631
(1,631)

Technical Know How is recognised as Atmosphere Control International Limited’s proprietary
expertise and experience of atmosphere management techniques in the defence environment.

73

vehicles

Total

£'000

£'000

139
10

809
110

3,043
165

509
56
-

149
119
3
(84)

919
29
300
(482)

3,208
204
303
(2,197)

-

565

187

766

1,518

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014
Charge for year

653
327

390
56

77
29

558
111

1,678
523

At 31 December 2014

980

446

106

669

2,201

160
(1,140)

46
-

12
(63)

203
(461)

421
(1,664)

-

492

55

411

958

Net book value
At 1 January 2014

978

74

62

251

1,365

At 31 December 2014

651

63

43

250

1,007

At 31 December 2015

-

73

132

355

560

At 31 December 2014
Additions
Acquired on Acquisition
Disposals
At 31 December 2015

Charge for year
Disposals

Intangible assets above arose on the acquisition of Atmosphere Control International Limited and
Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited on 5 April 2012. Intangible asset additions in the year arose
on the acquisition of Shaw Sheet Metal Company Limited on 30 January 2015.

Plant and
machinery
and motor

At 31 December 2015

The Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note 21) are secured by the lessors’ title to
the leased assets, which have a carrying value of £nil at 31 December 2015 (2014 - £30,000).
Assets still in use with an NBV of zero are £1,377,000 (2014 - £1,249,000).
The acquired assets represent the fair value of property, plant and equipment held within
Shaw Sheet Metal Company Limited which was acquired by the Group, through its subsidiary
Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited, on 30 January 2015.
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11

12

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Parent Company’s investments comprise interests in group undertakings, details of which are
listed below. The Companies are wholly owned and are incorporated in England and Wales.

Parent Company

Computer
equipment
£'000

Office
furniture
and fittings
£'000

Total
£'000

Cost
At 1 January 2014
Additions

4
1

-

4
1

At 31 December 2014
Additions

5
20

108

5
128

At 31 December 2015

25

108

133

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014
Charge for year

1
1

-

1
1

At 31 December 2014

2

-

2

Charge for year

1

-

1

At 31 December 2015

3

-

3

Net book value
At 1 January 2014

3

-

3

At 31 December 2014

3

-

3

At 31 December 2015

22

108

130

74

At 31 December 2015, there are no assets held under finance leases (2014 - £Nil).

Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings

Parent Company
Cost and net book value
At 1 January
Investment during year:
Long term loan to subsidiary
Grant of share options to subsidiary company employees

75

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

19,047

16,147

1,852
-

2,896
4

Provision against long term inter-company loan

(5,872)

At 31 December

15,027

19,047

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

10,910

10,910

4,086
31

8,106
31

15,027

19,047

-

The total cost of investment in subsidiary undertakings can be analysed as:

Investment in shares in Group undertakings
Long term loan to subsidiary net of provision
Share options granted to subsidiary employees

The long term loan has been made to Corac Energy Technologies Limited (“CET”). The loan is interest
free and has no fixed date for repayment. Following a review of the future expected performance of
CET and timings thereof, the parent has assessed that there is some risk in the full recoverability of
the loan. As such, an impairment review was undertaken and a provision of £5,872k has been
recognised in the current year.
The key assumptions on which the impairment tests are based are a pre-tax discount rate of 12%
(2014:10%) and a growth rate of 2% (2014 - 5%) on forecast cash flows.
The remaining carrying value of the assets is based on the value in use.
Share options have been granted to employees of Corac Energy Technologies Limited.
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14

Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings (continued)

76
Name of undertaking

Description of
shares held

Atmosphere Control International Limited
Corac Energy Technologies Limited
Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited
Shaw Sheet Metal Company Limited
Shaw Sheet Metal (Holdings) Limited
Shaw Laser Company Limited
Shaw Sheet Metal Group Limited
Corac Group Limited
Corac Engineering Limited
Compact Radial Compressors Limited
Wellman Defence Limited

£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£0.0001 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares

1
2
3
4

13

Proportion of
nominal value
of shares
held by the
parent company
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Group
2015
£'000
Principal
activity

2015
£'000
600
(556)
44

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000

64
105

44
15

-

-

2

169

59

-

-

3
4

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

15 Long term contracts
The carrying amounts presented in the Group's balance sheet for long term contracts relate to the
following categories of assets and liabilities:

Group
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Work in progress included in inventories
Amounts due from contract customers included in
trade and other receivables
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other
payables
Contract losses included in provisions

Amount owed by Employee Benefit Trust

Amounts owed by EBT
Less: impairment

2014
£'000
600
(526)
74

The loan to the Employee Benefit Trust is interest free and unsecured. Details of the Employee
Benefit Trust are provided in note 24. The loan is repayable under the following circumstances:

ii)

Raw materials
Work in progress

2014
£'000

1

Provision of air purification equipment for submarines including oxygen/hydrogen generation and
purification, air handling and distribution systems.
Innovation and development of turbomachinery systems.
Manufacture of heat exchange equipment used in the heating and cooling of large scale industrial
processes.
Specialist laser cutting and sheet metal fabrication. Ceased trading on 2 November 2015, acquired by
Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited

Parent Company

i)

Inventories

From receipt of consideration from the sale of shares in the Parent Company purchased with
the loan; and
Following any lapses in options granted by the Employee Benefit Trust over shares in the Parent
Company, the Parent Company can force the sale of shares to repay the loan.

The loan is not expected to be fully repaid within the next 12 months.
Under the terms of the loan facility, should the Employee Benefit Trust be unable to repay the loan
following disposal of all its assets then the loan shall be considered waived.
The impairment against the loan is a result of movements in the number and open market value of
the shares in the Parent Company held by the Employee Benefit Trust, which could affect its ability to
fund future loan repayments.

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses to date
Less progress billings

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

105

15

3,663
(2,210)

3,254
(1,862)

(64)

(416)

1,494

991

36,204
(34,710)

34,512
(33,521)

1,494

991

77
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16 Financial assets and liabilities

17

Trade and other receivables
Group

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated and company balance sheets relate to the
following categories of assets and liabilities:
Group
2015
£'000
Financial assets
Amounts owed by EBT (note 13)
Trade and other receivables (note 17)
Cash and cash equivalents (note 19)
Derivative financial asset (note 18)

Financial liabilities – current
Trade payables (note 20)
Current obligation under hire
purchase contracts (note 21)
Non-current obligations under hire
purchase contracts (note 21)

2014
£'000

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000

-

-

44

74

5,788
7,005
70

6,504
9,569
-

2,936
1,547
-

1,918
3,605
-

12,863

16,073

4,527

5,597

2,444

3,731

2,150

77

-

12

-

-

-

13

-

-

2,444

3,756

2,150

77

See note 2.14 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of financial
instruments. The fair values are presented in the related notes. A description of the Group’s risk
management and objectives for financial instruments is given in note 26.

Financial assets:
Trade receivables
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Amounts due from construction contract
customers (see note 15)

Non-financial assets:
Prepayments and accrued income
Deferred tax
Other taxes

Parent Company

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

2,125
-

3,250
-

13
2,923

1,918

3,663

3,254

-

-

5,788

6,504

2,936

1,918

467
131
-

563
148
-

46
74

15
26

6,386

7,215

3,056

1,959

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair
value due to their short term nature. During 2015, the Group has made a provision of £5,000 in
respect of doubtful receivables from one customer. (2014 - £25,000 in respect of two customers).
With this exception, no other allowances for doubtful receivables have been made because there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The average age of these receivables is 23 days (2014 - 26 days). The ageing of past
due but not impaired receivables is:
Group
2015
£'000
0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
>90 days

2014
£'000

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000

495
183
53
11

616
3
373
12

-

-

742

1,004

-

-

In 2015 a rent deposit of £55,000 (2014 - 55,000) due after more than one year is included within
Prepayments and accrued income.
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore
measured at amortised cost. Credit terms are negotiated as part of each individual contract. No
interest is charged on the receivables from the date of the invoice. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over any of its trade receivables nor does it have a legal
right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty.
The 2014 past due but not impaired receivables have been restated to be consistent with 2015.
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19

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax comprises:

80
Group
Accelerated capital allowances and other temporary differences
Tax losses carried forward

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

19
112

36
112

131

148

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Derivative financial asset
Group

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

2014
£'000

7,005

9,569

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000
1,547

3,605

The funds were placed on floating interest rate deposit as follows:

The deferred tax asset is expected to be recovered in more than one year.

18

Group
2015
£'000

20

Group
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

7,005

9,569

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000
1,547

3,605

Trade and other payables
Group
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

2,444

3,731

150

77

Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings

-

-

2,000

-

Forward foreign exchange contract

Obligations under hire purchase
contracts

-

12

-

-

Foreign exchange risk arises when individual group operations enter into transactions denominated
in a currency other than its functional currency, sterling. Where the risk to the Group is considered
to be significant, management will enter into a matching forward foreign exchange contract with a
reputable bank.

Amounts falling due after one
year
Obligations under hire purchase
contracts

-

13

-

-

2,444

3,756

2,150

77

621

1,026

102

155

2,210

1,862

-

-

481

962

58

113

5,756

7,606

2,310

345

Derivative financial asset
Forward foreign exchange contracts

70

-

Total derivative financial asset

70

-

Current and non-current:
Current
Non-current

70
-

-

Total derivative financial asset

70

-

The notional principal amounts of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 December
2015 were £1,413,439 (2014 – £nil). Their fair value is £70,000 (2014 - £nil).
The transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates within the
next 12 months. Gains and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2015
are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period.

Parent Company
2015
2014
£'000
£'000

Financial liabilities:
Amounts falling due within one
year
Trade payables

Non-financial liabilities:
Accrued expenses
Amounts due to construction
contract customers
(see note 15)
Other taxes and social security
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20

22

Trade and other payables (continued)

Deferred taxation
Group
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

At 1 January
Arising on business combination
Credit to comprehensive income

1,985
81
(353)

2,148
(163)

At 31 December

1,713

1,985

The carrying values of trade and other payables are considered to be a reasonable estimate of
their fair values.
Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and
ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 49 days (2014 - 60 days).
For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms.

21 Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
The Group uses finance leases and hire purchase contracts to acquire plant and machinery.
Future minimum lease payments under hire purchase contracts are as follows:
Group
2015
£'000

2014
£'000

Future minimum payments due:

23

Provision
Group

Not later than one year
After one year but not more than five years

-

14

-

12
26

Less finance charges allocated to future periods

-

(1)

Present value of minimum lease payments

-

25

The present value of minimum lease payments is
analysed as follows:
Not later than one year
After one year but not more than five years

The deferred tax liability arose in respect of intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of
Atmosphere Control International Limited and Hunt Thermal Technologies Limited on 5 April 2012,
and Shaw Sheet Metal Company on 30 January 2015. In the year to December 2015, the credit to
Comprehensive Income of £353,000 comprises the impact of the announcement of the reduction in
the rate of Corporation Tax from 20% to 18% (£172,000) and release of deferred tax liability arising
on the amortisation of acquired intangibles (£181,000).

At 1 January 2015
Utilised
Released to comprehensive income

12

-

13

-

25

The average lease term is 0 years. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the average effective
borrowing rate was 2.9% (2014 - 5.9%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on
a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.
All lease obligations are denominated in sterling. The group's obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessors' rights over the leased assets as disclosed in note 11.
The fair value of the group's lease obligations is approximately equal to their carrying amount.

Contracts
£'000

Property
£'000

Total
£'000

609
(49)

416
(493)

330
(246)

1,355
(788)

(65)

-

(80)

(145)

-

137

537

674

495

60

541

1,096

Charged to comprehensive income

At 31 December 2015
-

Warranty
£'000

The warranty provision recognises future claims for rectification and repair to goods sold and
remaining under a contractual warranty period, the majority of which are expected to be incurred in
the next one to three years.
The contract provision represents foreseeable losses on contracts in progress. These are expected
to be incurred in the next one to two years.
The property provision recognises future costs of building dilapidations arising under the terms of
property leases.
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Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid

Ordinary shares of 10p each

The movement on the group's share option scheme is summarised in the table below:

2015
Number

2014
Number

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

422,464,726

422,464,726

42,246

42,246

84

Share capital (continued)

In accordance with the Articles of Association for the Company adopted on 19 May 2011, the share
capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of ordinary shares of nominal value 10
pence each.
All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represent one
vote at the shareholders' meeting of TP Group plc (formerly Corac Group plc). None of the Parent
Company shares are held by any company in the Group. The Employee Benefit Trust holds shares in
the Parent Company as set out in note 25.
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2015
Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

2015

Number
of options

2014

2014
Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

Number
of options

At 1 January 2015
Lapsed during the year
Cancelled during the year
Granted during the year

19.1
19.1
37.3
10.0

25,752,719
(2,238,585)
(3,100,000)
3,100,000

22.4
13.8
10.0

20,083,913
(3,585,194)
9,254,000

At 31 December 2015

15.5

23,514,134

19.1

25,752,719

Exercisable at 31 December 2015

18.3

15,350,839

23.7

16,778,905

Options
The Group has two unapproved share option schemes and an Enterprise Management Incentive
(EMI) scheme. Share options have been granted by both the Parent Company and the Corac
Employee Benefit Trust (note 25) under the rules of these schemes. The share options granted by the
Employee Benefit Trust have no dilutive effect on the Parent Company's share capital.
Unapproved schemes

EMI scheme

Parent
Number of options

At 1 January 2015
Lapsed during the
year
Cancelled during the
year
Granted during the
year
At 31 December 2015

Total

Parent

Parent

Company

EBT

Company

EBT

Company

EBT

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

14,320,866

300,000

10,616,829

515,004

24,937,715

815,004

25,752,719

(250,000)

-

(1,880,248)

(108,337)

(2,130,248)

(108,337)

(2,238,585)

(3,100,000)

-

-

-

(3,100,000)

-

(3,100,000)

3,100,000

-

-

-

3,100,000

-

3,100,000

14,070,886

300,000

8,736,581

406,667

22,807,467

706,667

23,514,134

The exercise of options granted prior to April 2010 and those granted during 2014 and 2015 are
subject to the satisfaction of the applicable performance conditions. At 31 December 2015,
performance conditions not satisfied relate to the market price of the ordinary shares of the Parent
Company as quoted on AIM. Options vest over a three year period and generally will lapse on
cessation of employment or ten years from issue.

No share options were exercised during the year (2014 - None). The options outstanding at 31
December 2015 had exercise prices as shown in the following table and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 5.1 years.
At 31 December 2015 options over ordinary 10p shares together with the fair value per option
granted and the assumptions used in the calculation of fair value for awards made after 7 November
2002, are set out in the table below.
The closing market price of the Parent Company's shares at 31 December 2015 was 2.75p and the
range during the year was between 2.63p and 6.25p.
Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a share price is expected to fluctuate during
a period. For options issued after 2009, expected volatility was based on the volatility of the Parent
Company's shares during the previous 12 months. For options issued in earlier periods, the volatility
of the Parent Company's share price was calculated as the average of annualised standard deviations
of daily continuously compounded returns on the parent company's stock, calculated over 1, 2 and 3
years back from the date of grant where possible.
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25

Share capital (continued)

The risk-free rate is the yield to maturity on the date of grant of a UK Gilt Strip, with term to maturity
equal to the expected life of the option.
The group recognised total expenses of £36,000 and £44,000 related to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions in 2015 and 2014 respectively.

Date of
grant

Number

Option
price
per share
pence

Closing
share
price
at grant
pence

Exercise
price
pence

Expected
volatility
%

Risk-free
interest
rate
%

Fair value
per share
pence

2006

366,667 *

37.50

36.50

37.50

38.26

4.30

11.41

2007

283,334
855,000

36.00
39.00

36.00
38.50

36.00
39.00

35.44
35.04

5.35
5.30

7.20
9.45

2007
2007

550,000

51.50

51.50

51.50

29.32

4.58

10.10

2007

172,117

53.67

52.00

53.67

29.32

4.58

7.99

2008

260,000 *

14.90

16.75

14.90

79.50

2.76

7.96

2008

90,000

14.90

16.75

14.90

79.50

2.76

7.96

2010

80,000 *

25.25

24.52

25.25

67.61

1.27

8.78

Employee Benefit Trust

On 8 November 2002, the Parent Company established the Corac Employee Benefit Trust, an
employee benefit trust, as an employees' share scheme for the benefit of and as an incentive for
the employees of the Group. The Corac Employee Benefit Trust is managed by an independent
trustee.
At 31 December 2015 the Parent Company had loaned £600,000 (2014 - £600,000) to the Corac
Employee Benefit Trust. With this loan the Trustee purchased shares in the Parent Company and, at
31 December 2015, the Corac Employee Benefit Trust held 1,606,769 (2014 - 1,606,769) ordinary
shares in TP Group plc (formerly Corac Group plc) with a book cost of £653,352 (2014 - £653,352)
which had a market value of £44,816 (2014 - £74,313). As set out in note 2.16(iii), neither the
purchase nor sale of shares in the Parent Company leads to a gain or loss being recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income but instead these are shown as movements on
consolidated equity.
Options have been granted over 706,667 (2014 - 815,004) shares to certain employees being:,
366,667 at 37.5p per share until 27 July 2016, 260,000 at 14.9p per share until 30 December 2018
and 80,000 at 25.25p per share until 23 June 2019. Options issued prior to 2010 are subject to
performance conditions. At 31 December 2015, performance conditions not satisfied relate to the
market price of the ordinary shares of the Parent Company as quoted on AIM.
The Parent Company intends to fund any shortfall should the Employee Benefit Trust need to
purchase more shares to fulfil its obligations to option holders.

2010

220,000

25.25

24.52

25.25

67.61

1.27

8.78

2010

600,000

21.75

22.00

21.75

50.63

1.20

6.31

2010

400,000

15.40

14.92

15.40

37.09

0.78

2.93

2010

6,455,000

15.00

14.80

15,00

37.43

0.80

3.04

2010

258,514

15.08

15.50

15.08

37.43

0.88

3.45

2011

250,000

15.00

15.00

15.00

40.71

1.63

3.52

2012

437,603

11.83

11.75

11.83

36.28

0.45

2.34

26

2012

Liquidity risk

2012
2013

500,000
368,000

11.25
10.00

11.25
9.50

11.25
10.00

36.28
36.28

0.47
0.51

2.27
1.73

1,095,899

14.00

14.00

14.00

42.23

0.35

3.25

2013

250,000

12.96

12.88

12.96

20.44

0.51

1.75

2014

6,422,000

10.00

9.75

10.00

19.57

0.53

0.99

2014

250,000

10.00

5.50

10.00

42.28

0.76

0.38

2014

250,000

10.00

5.13

10.00

43.24

0.74

0.31

2015

3,100,000

10.00

5.00

10.00

51.00

1.23

0.53

23,514,134

* These options were issued by the Employee Benefit Trust.
All options expire 10 years after the date of grant.
The dividend yield of 0% in all cases reflects the absence of dividends and of a clear dividend policy
statement at the relevant dates of grant.

Dividends on the shares owned by the Employee Benefit Trust, the purchase of which was funded
by an interest free loan to the Employee Benefit Trust from the Parent Company, are waived on the
condition that the Trustee shall not be liable for any losses to the Employee Benefit Trust as a result
of the waiver.

Risk management objectives and policies

Until the Group achieves cash flow breakeven from the sale of its products and services, it will seek
to finance its operations by raising equity financing on the AIM and investing the proceeds on a
short term basis as its development proceeds. The Group seeks to manage financial risk to ensure
sufficient liquidity to meet foreseeable requirements until cash flow breakeven and to invest cash
profitably and at low risk.
The Group holds investments in bank deposits as a liquid resource to fund its operations. The
Group's strategy for managing cash is to maximise interest income whilst ensuring availability to
match the profile of the Group's expenditure. Liquidity is further managed by tight controls over
expenditure.

Credit risk
The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from holding cash and cash equivalents. The Group
places funds on deposit directly with banks. Group credit policy limits deposits to an approved list
of specific banks, which is compiled taking into account various factors including credit ratings.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is also attributable to its trade receivables, which, as set out in
note 17, at 31 December 2015 were £2,125,000 (2014 - £3,250,000). The amounts presented in the
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28

Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
88

balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group's
management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment. There are doubtful receivables of £5,000 at the end of 2015 (2014 - £25,000).

Interest rate risk

As part of the Groups long term contract trading activities, £236,000 of performance and warranty
bonds (2014 - £83,000) have been issued to customers. No liability is expected to arise and no
provision is made in the accounts.

29

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in
financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The principal reason for this acquisition is to support the Group’s evolution as a specialist engineering
company. The acquired business is reported within the Energy and Process Industries segment and the
TPG Engineering business unit.

Foreign currency risk

Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are as follows:

The Group undertakes contracts denominated in foreign currencies (principally Euro and US
dollar) leading to an exposure in exchange rate movements for both sales and purchase
transactions. Where they cannot be offset, forward exchange contracts are utilised to minimise
the risk.

Financial commitments under operating leases

2015
£'000

Parent Company
2014
£'000

2015
£'000

2014
£'000

£'000

Provisional Fair
Value
£'000

105
295
(250)
-

198
498
15
(4)
(81)

303
498
310
(254)
(81)

150

626

776
-

Goodwill arising on consolidation

776

Cash consideration
719
1,703
3,479

720
1,915
3,804

30
46
-

-

5,901

6,439

76

-

The difference between the book values and fair values relates to the revaluation of certain plant and
equipment and the fair value of acquired intangible assets. The acquired intangible assets relate to
technical know-how.
The fair value of the acquired receivables was £281,000; there were no contractual cash flows at the
date of acquisition. The costs of acquisition of £110,000 are included in the administration costs.

Office equipment and motor vehicles
Within one year
From one to five years
In more than five years

Adjustment

Total net assets

Land and buildings
Within one year
From one to five years
In more than five years

Provisional Book
Value
£'000
Property, plant & equipment
Identifiable intangible assets
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Deferred taxation

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Group

Business combinations during the period

On 30 January 2015 the Group, through its subsidiary Hunt Thermal Technologies Ltd acquired 100%
of the issued share capital of Shaw Sheet Metal Company Ltd for a consideration of £776,000, and
costs of acquisition of £110,000, paid in cash, from the Group’s existing cash resources. The company
specialises in laser cutting and sheet metal fabrication. Payback of the investment is expected within
three years.

A further risk arising from the Group's financial instruments is interest rate risk. The Directors
consider the principal element of risk directly arising from changes in interest rates relates to the
level of interest income earned on bank deposits. Funds are invested to maintain a balance
between accessibility of funds and competitive rates of return whilst investing funds safely.

27

Contingent liabilities

55
45
-

57
60
-

-

8
-

6,001

6,556

76

8

The amounts that would have been recognised in total comprehensive income if the acquisition had
been at the beginning of the reporting period are:

Revenue
Operating Profit

No Company in the Group sub-leases any of their leased premises.
Land and building operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for all of its
properties. Leases are negotiated for periods of between 1 and 25 years and rentals are fixed for an
average of 5 years.
At 31 December 2015, the Group had no capital commitments (2014 - None).
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Related party transactions

There were no related party transactions in 2015.

£'000

£'000

1,248
87

303
310
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